

Notice to Contractors,

Proposal,

AGREEMENT, &

Special Provisions

FOR CONSTRUCTION ON
Project No: 24-010
Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

IN STANISLAUS COUNTY, TURLOCK, CALIFORNIA.

Engineering Division

Contact Person: Oscar Molina Phone: 209-668-5366 Email: omolina@turlock.ca.us

William D. Morris, RCE 55910

City Engineer

Proposals shall be delivered to Turlock, California at or before 2:00 PM on Tuesday, May 13, 2025 at the office of the City Engineer,
Engineering Division
156 S. Broadway, Suite 150
Turlock, CA 95380

LICENSEES RESPONSIBLE FOR SPECIFICATIONS

Contract documents prepared by or under the direction of the following registered persons:

City Engineer (Front End Specifications)

William D. Morris, R.C.E.
Engineering Division
156 S. Broadway Suite 150
Turlock, CA 95380



Architect

Doug Davis WMB Architects 5757 Pacific Avenue, Suite 226 Stockton, CA 95207 209-944-9110



Structural Design

Douglass E. Wagner, P.E. JC Wagner & Associates 2132 N. El Dorado Street Stockton, CA 95204 209-227-7646



Mechanical Engineer

Allen Layman, P.E. Nexus Engineering 1400-A Lone Palm Avenue Modesto, CA 95351 209-572-7399



Electrical Engineer

Kevin Pezzoni, P.E. Pezzoni Engineering 1150 9th Street Ste, #1415 Modesto, CA 95354 209-554-4602



TABLE OF CONTENTS

LICENSEES RESPONSIBLE FOR SPECIFICATIONS	
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
CITY OF TURLOCK, CALIFORNIA	
NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS	
PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST	
PROPOSAL	
BIDDER'S FORM	
AFFIDAVIT	
INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER	14
BIDDER'S BOND	16
AGREEMENT	19
CONTRACTOR'S PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES	40
PAYMENT BY FORCE ACCOUNT	41
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE CERTIFICATION	46
PERFORMANCE BOND	47
SPECIAL PROVISIONS	51
SECTION 1 SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS	
1.01 HIERARCHY OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:	51
1.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY:	52
1.03 COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:	52
SECTION 2 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS	52
2.01 GENERAL:	52
2.02 EXISTING UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND SITE CONDITIONS:	53
SECTION 3 AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT	54
3.01 GENERAL:	
3.02 PRE-AWARD PROTEST PROCEDURES:	54
SECTION 4 START OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND DELAY DAMAGES	
4.01 NOTICE TO PROCEED:	
4.02 PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING:	
4.03 COPIES OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:	55
4.04 STAGING OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT:	
4.05 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION:	56
4.06 FINAL COMPLETION:	57
SECTION 5 GENERAL	57
5.01 INTERNET BASED CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:	57
5.02 BUSINESS LICENSE:	58
5.03 PROGRESS SCHEDULE:	
5.04 PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:	
5.05 PERMITS:	59
5.06 SUBMITTALS:	
5.07 CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURES:	62

5.08	NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIM:	63
5.09	LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION:	63
5.10	PREVAILING WAGE:	63
5.11	SUBCONTRACTING:	64
5.12	PAYMENTS:	64
5.13	GUARANTY:	65
5.14	PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS:	65
5.15	PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS:	65
5.16	PUBLIC SAFETY:	65
5.17	REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES:	66
5.18	WORKING HOURS:	
5.19	SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS:	
5.20	UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT REQUIREMENTS:	68
5.21	PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY:	68
5.22	DUST CONTROL:	
5.23	USE OF HYDRANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES:	69
5.24	TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION POWER:	69
5.25	SALVAGE MATERIALS:	70
5.26	TESTING:	70
5.27	AS-BUILTS:	70
SECTIO	N 6 (BLANK)	70
SECTIO	N 7 (BLANK)	70
SECTIO	N 8 (BLANK)	70
SECTIO	N 9 DESCRIPTION OF WORK	70
SECTIO	N 10 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS	71
10.01	MOBILIZATION & DEMOBILIZATION	71
10.02	REMOVE EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS	71
10.03	SITE WORK:	72
10.04	INTERIOR ROOM ALTERATIONS:	72
10.05	PATCHWORK:	72
10.06	RESTROOM ALTERATIONS:	72
10.07	ELECTRICAL:	72
10.08	MECHANICAL:	73
10.09	STRUCTURAL:	73
10.10	BID ALTERNATE 1 - EXTERIOR DOUBLE DOORS:	73
10.11	BID ALTERNATE 2 – NEW MINI SPLIT SYSTEM:	73
10.12	FINAL CLEANUP:	73
SECTIO	N 11 (BLANK)	74
SECTIO!	N 12 (BLANK)	74
	N 13 (BLANK)	
SECTIO		

CITY OFTURLOCK, CALIFORNIA NOTICETO CONTRACTORS

Sealed proposals will be received by the City Engineer of the City of Turlock, Engineering Division, 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150, Turlock, California 95380, until 2:00 PM on Tuesday, May 13th, 2025, for:

City Project No. 24-010 Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

In accordance with and as described and provided in the plans, specifications and the proposed form of contract therefore, all of which are on file in the office of the City Engineer, and to which special reference is hereby made.

No verbal, telegraphic, electronic mail, facsimile, or telephone Proposals shall be considered.

A *Mandatory* Pre-Bid meeting will be held on May 7th, 2025 at 2:00 PM at Fire Station No. 31, 540 E Marshall St, Turlock, CA 95380. Only prime contractors who intend to bid on the project are required to attend. Sub-contractors and suppliers may attend but are not required to do so. The purpose of the pre-bid meeting is to provide a venue for bidders to view the site of work and ask questions of the designer and City staff.

Proposals are required to be complete and for the entire work, materials and improvements unless the contrary is indicated in the specifications.

In accordance with the provisions of California Business and professions Code, Section 7028, Contractor shall possess one of the following Contractor license(s) at the time of bid and for the duration of the contract:

1. B- General Building Contractor

Failure to possess a specified license shall render the Bid as non-responsive, shall act as a bar to award of the contract to any Bidder not possessing said license(s) at the time of Bid opening and shall result in the forfeiture of the security of said Bidder. Furthermore, any Bidder or Contractor not so licensed shall be subject to all legal penalties imposed by law, including, but not limited to, any appropriate disciplinary action by the Contractor's License Board.

Each proposal must be accompanied by cash, cashier's check, or check certified by a responsible bank, or by a bid bond, the proposed form of which is on file in the office of the City Engineer of said City and to which special reference is hereby made in a sum not less than ten percent (10%) of the total amount bid, payable to the City of Turlock as liquidated damages in the case the bidder is awarded the contract and fails within ten (10) days after the date of mailing to him by the City Engineer of a notice of award of the contract and that the contract is ready for signature to execute the above-mentioned written

contract and file with the City Engineer satisfactory insurance certificates as required by the terms of said contract and satisfactory bonds as required by law for the faithful performance of said contract and for the protection of material, men and laborers. Special reference is hereby made to Sections 5100, et. seq., of the Public Contracts Code of the State of California and to the proposed forms for said bonds now on file in the office of the said City Engineer for further particulars regarding bonds.

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in the county Stanislaus in which the work is to be done have been determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations. These wages are set forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, available at 156 S. Broadway St, Turlock, CA 95380 and available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD.

Bidders' attention is directed to the insurance requirements in the contract. It is highly recommended that bidders confer with their respective insurance carriers or brokers to determine in advance of bid submission the availability of insurance certificates and endorsements prescribed and provided herein. If an apparent low bidder fails to comply strictly with the insurance requirements, that bidder may be disqualified from award of the contract.

No proposal will be considered unless made on forms furnished by the City Engineer of said City at his office of said City. Each proposal must be sealed, and the envelope containing the same must be addressed to the City Engineer of the City of Turlock and must be plainly marked. Each proposal shall clearly identify the bidders name and address on the sealed envelope.

Each bid shall separately state in figures the price offered for the approximate quantity of each item set forth and shall also state in words and figures the total contract price. Quantities set forth in the proposal form and in the specifications are approximate only, being given as a basis for comparison of bids, and the City of Turlock does not expressly or implied agree that the actual amount of work or materials will correspond therewith, but reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of any class or portion of the work or materials as may be deemed necessary by the City Engineer.

Proposals may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) days after the time fixed for opening of proposals. The City Council of the City of Turlock reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or any part thereof and to waive any errors or informalities in any proposals and to set and act as sole judge of the merit and qualifications of the equipment, supplies or services offered.

At the request and expense of Contractor, pursuant to Division 2, Part 5, Section 22300, et. seq., of the Public Contracts Code, securities equivalent to any funds withheld as retention from progress payments made under this contract may be deposited with the City of Turlock or with a State or Federally chartered bank as escrow agent, who shall pay such moneys to Contractor upon completion of the contract.

Copies of the Contract Documents, including Instructions to Bidders, Bid Proposal Forms, Plans and Specifications, may be downloaded from the engineering division's web site or purchased for a non-refundable fee of **Seventy Seven** dollars (\$77) at the Office of the City Engineer, 156 S. Broadway, Ste. 150, Turlock, CA 95380, Phone (209) 668-5520. For additional information, go to http://www.cityofturlock.org/capitalprojects

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free "hotline" service to report bid rigging activities. Bid rigging activities can be reported Mondays through Fridays, between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, Telephone No. 1-800-424-9071. Anyone with knowledge of possible bid rigging, bidder collusion, or other fraudulent activities should use the "hotline" to report these activities. The "hotline" is part of the DOT's continuing effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General. All information will be treated confidentially and caller anonymity will be respected.

No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5.

This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. The contractors and subcontractors must furnish electronic certified payroll records to the Labor Commissioner.

The contractor shall post job site notices prescribed by regulation. (See 8 Calif. Code Reg. §16451(d) for the notice that previously was required for projects monitored by the CMU.)

DATED: 4/22/2025 CITY OF TURLOCK

William D. Morris, RCE 55910

City Engineer

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST

The bidder shall provide a complete proposal in a sealed envelope before 2:00 PM on Tuesday, May 13, 2025

at the address shown on the cover sheet of these specifications. FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL THE REQUIRED DOCUMENTS LISTED IN THE TABLE BELOW MAY CAUSE THE PROPOSAL TO BE CONSIDERED NON-RESPONSIVE.

Complete Proposal	Page No.
☐ PROPOSAL AND BIDDING FORM	5-11
☐ AFFIDAVIT	12
☐ INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER	13-14
☐ BIDDER'S BOND	15-16
☐ LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS	17

PROPOSAL

Project No. 24-010

Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

City of Turlock, California	
DATED:	
To: The Honorable City Council of the City of Turlock, California:	
NAME OF BIDDER:	
BUSINESS ADDRESS:	
PLACE OF RESIDENCE:	

Bids are to be submitted for the entire work. The amount of the bid for comparison purposes will be the total of all items. The bidder shall set forth for each unit basis item of work a unit price and a total for the item, and for each lump sum item a total for the item, all in clearly legible figures in the respective spaces provided for that purpose.

In the case of unit basis items, the amount set forth under the "Item Total" column shall be the product of the unit price bid and the estimated quantity for the item. In case of discrepancy between the unit price and the total set forth for a unit basis item, the unit price shall prevail except as provided in (a) or (b), as follows:

- (a) If the amount set forth as unit price is unreadable or otherwise unclear, or is omitted, or is the same as the amount as the entry in the item total column, then the amount set forth in the item total column for the item shall prevail and shall be divided by the estimated quantity for the item and the price thus obtained shall be the unit price;
- (b) (Decimal Errors) If the product of the entered unit price and the estimated quantity is exactly off by a factor of ten, one hundred, etc., or one-tenth, or one-hundredth, etc. from the entered total, the discrepancy will be resolved by using the entered unit price or item total, whichever most closely approximates percentage wise the unit price or item total in the Department's Final Estimate of Cost.

In accordance with the annexed Notice to Contractors, the undersigned, as bidder, declares that he has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, the plans, specifications and technical requirements therefore, and the proposed forms of contract and bonds mentioned or referred to in said Notice and on file in the Office of the City Engineer of the City of Turlock, together with the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft or type of workmen needed to execute said contract; and he proposes and agrees that if this proposal is accepted, he will furnish all labor, materials, equipment, plant transportation, service, sales taxes, permit fees and other costs necessary to complete the

construction in strict conformity to the plans and specifications and he will enter into a written contract with the City of Turlock in the form of contract on file in the Office of the City Engineer for such purposes, and that he will execute and/or provide all bonds and insurance certificates required by law and/or by said contract and/or mentioned in said Notice to Contractors all in accordance with and subject to all applicable laws, and that he will take in full payment therefore the following unit prices, to wit:

BIDDER'S FORM

PROJECT TITLE: Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

PROJECT NUMBER: 24-010

OPENING DATE: May 13, 2025

OPENING TIME: 2:00 PM

Item		Unit of	Estimated		
No.	Item Description	Measure	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
	E	BASE BID			
1	Mobilzation and Demobilization	LS	1		
2	Remove Existing Improvements	LS	1		
3	Site Work	LS	1		
4	Interior Room Alterations	LS	1		
5	Patchwork	LS	1		
6	Restroom Alterations	LS	1		
7	Electrical	LS	1		
8	Mechanical	LS	1		
9	Structural	LS	1		
10	All Other Work Not Included within the Bid Items Above	LS	1		
Base	Base Subtotal				

Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding documents and other related data identified in the Bidding Documents and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged

ADDENDA

No	Date	Signed		
No	Date	Signed		
No	Date	Signed		
No	Date	Signed		
No	Date	Signed		
	/RITTEN IN FIGURES:	\$,,	·	
TOTAL BASE BID WRITTEN IN WORDS:				
CONTRACTOR:				

Bid Alternate 1: Exterior Double Door

Item		Unit of	Estimated		
No.	Item Description	Measure	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
	Demolition	LS	1		
	Rough Carpentry	LS	1		
	Doors & Frames	LS	1		
Alt 1	Gypsum Board	LS	1		
	Mechanical	LS	1		
	Electrical	LS	1		
	Pipe Bollard	EA	2		
Addit	ive Bid Alternate 1 Subtotal				

ADDITIVE BID ALTERNATE 1 WRITTEN IN FIGURES:	\$, ,
ADDITIVE BID ALTERNATE 1 WRITTEN IN WORDS	

Bid Alternate 2: New Mini-Split System

Item		Unit of	Estimated		
No.	Item Description	Measure	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
	Mechanical	LS	1		
Alt 2	Electrical	LS	1		
	Pipe Bollard	EA	1		
Addit	Additive Bid Alternate 2 Subtotal				

ADDITIVE BID ALTERNATE 2 WRITTEN IN FIGURES:	\$,,
ADDITIVE BID ALTERNATE 2 WRITTEN IN WORDS	

The Basis of Award shall be the lowest base bid without respect to Additive Bid Alternates.

The City may award a contract for the Base Bid only, or for the Base Bid plus any one or both of the

Additive Bid Alternates, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest of the City.

Each Bid Alternate listed shall be considered additive to the Base Bid price. For example, if the Base Bid subtotal price is \$100,000 and if by selecting the Bid Alternate 1 to provide new exterior double doors as indicated in the Plans and Specifications, the total cost of the bid costs such that the Additive Bid Alternate 1 work becomes \$130,000, then the bidder should enter bid costs such that the Additive Bid Alternate 1 Subtotal equals \$30,000.

If Bid Alternate 1 is selected, the contract time indicated in the sample agreement included with the bid documents will be increased by X days. If Bid Alternate 2 is selected, the contract time indicated in the sample agreement included with the bid documents will be increased by Y days.

COMITAIVI	S NAME:			
BY:				
ADDRESS:				
	(Number)	(Street	()	
	(City)	(State)	(ZIP)	-
CONTRAC	TOR'S PHONE #:			
CONTRAC	TOR'S EMAIL:			
EXPIRATI	ON DATE, AND AP	BE REQUIRED TO LIST PROPRIATE STATEMENT ITHORIZED TO DO SO.	REGARDING PE	RJURY AND
EXPIRATION BIGNED B	ON DATE, AND AP BY INDIVIDUAL AU EMS MAY CAUSE SA	PPROPRIATE STATEMENT ITHORIZED TO DO SO. AID CONTRACTOR'S BID TO	REGARDING PE FAILURE TO IN O BE REJECTED.	RJURY AND
EXPIRATION BIGNED B	ON DATE, AND AP BY INDIVIDUAL AU EMS MAY CAUSE SA	PPROPRIATE STATEMENT ITHORIZED TO DO SO.	REGARDING PE FAILURE TO IN O BE REJECTED.	RJURY AND
EXPIRATION SIGNED B ABOVE IT	ON DATE, AND AP BY INDIVIDUAL AU EMS MAY CAUSE SA Name)	PPROPRIATE STATEMENT ITHORIZED TO DO SO. AID CONTRACTOR'S BID TO	REGARDING PE FAILURE TO IN O BE REJECTED. ense #	RJURY AND
EXPIRATION SIGNED BABOVE IT: (Company's Expires This information of the simple sign of the sig	ON DATE, AND AP BY INDIVIDUAL AU EMS MAY CAUSE SA Name) I	PPROPRIATE STATEMENT ITHORIZED TO DO SO. AID CONTRACTOR'S BID TO	REGARDING PE FAILURE TO IN O BE REJECTED. ense #	RJURY AND ICLUDE THI Class
EXPIRATION SIGNED BABOVE IT: (Company's Expires This information is made here X	ON DATE, AND AP BY INDIVIDUAL AU EMS MAY CAUSE SA Name) I ation is true, is provided ein under penalty of perj	PPROPRIATE STATEMENT ITHORIZED TO DO SO. AID CONTRACTOR'S BID TO	REGARDING PE FAILURE TO IN O BE REJECTED. ense #	RJURY AND ICLUDE THI Class tions Code, and

If the proposal is accepted and the undersigned shall fail to contract as aforesaid and fail to file with the City insurance certificates as required by said contract, within fourteen (14) days after the bidder has received notice from the City Engineer or his representative of the City of Turlock that the contract has been awarded to bidder and is ready for signature, the City of Turlock may, at its option, determine that the bidder has abandoned his contract, and thereupon this proposal and the acceptance thereof shall be null and void.

Also accompanying this proposal is an affidavit of non-collusion and questionnaire to general contractors, a statement of proposed subcontractors, if any, the address of mill, shop or office of any subcontractor, and a statement of work to be performed by subcontractors.

The names and addresses of persons interested in the foregoing proposal as principals are as follows:

(IMPORTANT NOTICE: If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name of corporation, also names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and manager thereof; if a partnership, state true name of firm, also names of all individual co-partners composing firm; if bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first and last name in full.)

Licensed in accordance	with an act providing for the registration of Contractors,		
License No	Expiration Date		
DATED:	, 20		
Address:			
Phone:			
Email:			
X			
	ture of Bidder		

NOTE: If bidder is a corporation, the legal name of the corporation shall be set forth above together with the signature of the officers authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the corporation; if bidder is a co-partnership, the true name of the firm shall be set forth above together with the signature of the partner or partners authorized to sign contracts in behalf of the co-partnership; and, if bidder is an individual, his signature shall be placed above. If a signature is by an agent other than an officer of a corporation or a member of the partnership, a Power of Attorney must be on file with the City Clerk prior to opening or submitted with the bid; otherwise, the bid will be disregarded as irregular and unauthorized.

AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned bidder, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she are the party making the foregoing proposal or bid, that this bid is genuine and not collusive or sham, that said bidder has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other person or bidder, to put in a sham bid, or that said other person shall refrain from bidding, and has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure any advantage against the said City or any person interested in said improvement, for him/herself or any other person.

X			
XSignature of Bidder			
Jurat (Government Code Section 8202)			
State of California			
County of			
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me	on this	_ day of	, 20
by proved to me on the	e basis of satis	sfactory evidence	e to be the person(s) wh
appeared before me.			
		(AFFIX S	SE A I \
		(AITIX S	SEAL)
NOTARY PUBLIC SIGNATURE			
NOTARY PUBLIC PRINTED NAME			

INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER

The bidder is required to provide the following information. Additional sheets may be attached if

necessary. Contractor's mailing address: Contractor's telephone number: Number of years' experience as a contractor in construction work or installation work similar to that required in these specifications: Name of person who inspected the site of the proposed work for your firm: Date of Inspection: List at least four projects completed as of recent date: Project No. and Title: Class and Type of Work: Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner Registered Engineer in Charge of Project: **Total Contract amount:** Contract amount you performed: Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub: Date Completed: Liquidated Damages Assessed: Project No. and Title: Class and Type of Work: Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner __ Registered Engineer in Charge of Project:

Total Contract amount:	
Contract amount you performed:	
Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub:	
Date Completed:	
Liquidated Damages Assessed:	
•	
Project No. and Title:	
Class and Type of Work:	
Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner	
Registered Engineer in Charge of Project:	
Total Contract amount:	
Contract amount you performed:	
Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub	:
Date Completed:	
Liquidated Damages Assessed:	
Project No. and Title:	
Class and Type of Work:	
Name, Address, and Phone No. of Owner	
Registered Engineer in Charge of Project:	
Total Contract amount:	
Contract amount you performed:	
Name of Prime Contractor if you were Sub	:
Date Completed:	
Liquidated Damages Assessed:	

BIDDER'S BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS.

NOW ALL MEN DI THESE I RESENTS.
That wea
BIDDER, anda
SURETY a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of
and duly licensed to become sole Surety on bonds required and authorized by the State of California, a SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Turlock, hereinafter called the City, in the pensum of TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF THE BID of the Bidder above named ubmitted by said Bidder to the City, for the work described below, for the payment of which sum is awful money of the United States, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors dministrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. In no case shall the liability of the Surety hereunder exceed the sum
Dollars (\$).
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, whereas the bidder has submitted the bove-mentioned bid to the City for certain construction specifically described as follows for which bid are to be opened at Engineering Division, City Hall, 156 S. Broadway Suite 150, Turlock, California on
(day) (date) (time) for Project No. 24-010, "Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room ."

NOW, THEREFORE, if the aforesaid Bidder is awarded the contract and, within the time manner required under the specifications after the prescribed forms are presented to him for signature, enters into a written contract in the prescribed form in accordance with the bid, and files the two bonds with the City, one to guarantee faithful performance and the other to guarantee payment for labor and materials as required by law, then obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the Obligee and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs incurred by the Obligee in such a suit, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we	have hereunto set our hands and seals on
thisday of	, 20
BIDDER	
	_(SEAL)
(Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal)	
	_
(Signature)	
(Print Name and Title)	
/	
(ATTACH ACKNOWLEDG	MENT OF BIDDER)
SURETY	
	_(SEAL)
(Surety's Name and Corporate Seal)	
	_
(Signature)	
(Print Name and Title)	_
•	
(ATTACH ACKNOWLEDG	MENT OF SHRFTY'S
ATTORNEY-IN-FACT)	MILITI OF BUILLIE

NOTE: ATTACH CERTIFIED COPY OF POWER OF ATTORNEY

SUBCONTRACTORS City Project No. 24-010

Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

Prime Contracto	or:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	DIR NU	IMBER:
service to the Pri to the Prime Co Contract Docum construction of s greater. After the	ime Contractor in or abou ontractor, specially fabrica nents, in an amount in ex streets or highways, inclu-	t the construction of the test and installs a portion of the test and installs a portion of 1/2 of 1 percentages, in excessing the test and the test	he Work or Improvem ion of the Work or Im cent of the Prime Con s of 1/2 of 1 percent of will be allowed except	ractor who will perform Work or Labor or who will render tent, or a subcontractor duly licensed who, under subcontract approvement according to detailed Drawings contained in the attractor's Total Bid or, in the case of Bids or Offers for the of the Prime Contractor's total Bid or \$10,000 whichever is as otherwise provided by law. The listing of more than one of the permitted.
IF NO SUBCON	TRACTORS WILL FUR	NISH WORK, THEN	WRITE "NONE" BEI	LOW IN THE SPACE PROVIDED.
NAME	LICENSE NUMBER	DIR NUMBER	ADDRESS	WORK ITEMS TO BE PERFORMED AND % OF ITEM



AGREEMENT

FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

City Project No. 24-010

Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

THIS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into by and
between the CITY OF TURLOCK, a California municipal corporation ("City"), and
, a (" <u>Contractor</u> "), on this day of 20 (the
"Effective Date"). City and Contractor may be collectively referred to herein as the "Parties" or
individually as "Party." There are no other parties to this Agreement.
RECITALS
A. City seeks a duly qualified and licensed firm experienced in the construction of (the "Project").
B. The Project involves the expenditure of funds in excess of \$5,000 and constitutes a "public project" pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20161.
C. Contractor has made a proposal to City to provide construction services, a copy of which is attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit A (the " <u>Services</u> ").
D. City has determined it is necessary and desirable to employ the services of Contractor to perform construction work on the Project.
E. City has taken appropriate proceedings to authorize construction of the Project and execution of this contract pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20160 et seq.; specifically, on

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth below, the Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

- **1. Contract Documents:** This Agreement, together with the following documents, are collectively referred to herein as the "<u>Contract Documents</u>":
 - i. Notice to Bidders;
 - ii. Contractor's Bid or Proposal accepted by City;
 - iii. Special Provisions of the City of Turlock for Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room;
 - iv. Plans and detailed drawings prepared for this Project and approved by City ("Project Plans");
 - v. All bonds and insurance required in any of the Contract Documents;
 - vi. Any and all supplemental agreements amending, decreasing, or extending the work contemplated or which may be required to complete the work in a substantial and acceptable manner; and
 - vii. The current edition of the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and Drawings.

All of the Contract Documents are intended to incorporate the terms of the others so that any work called for in one and not mentioned in the other, or vice versa, is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all said documents. The documents comprising the complete contract will hereinafter be referred to as the "Contract." In case of any dispute regarding the terms of the Contract, the decision of the City Engineer shall be final.

2. Term. The Contract shall be effective as of the Effective Date first stated above. Contractor shall not commence work on the Project until it has been given notice by City ("Notice to Proceed"). The Contract shall terminate one (1) year(s) after City accepts Contractor's performance of the Services by recording a Notice of Completion with the County of Stanislaus Clerk Recorder (the "<u>Term</u>"), unless the Parties mutually agree in writing to terminate the Contract earlier or extend the Term in an agreed writing executed by both Parties.

3. Scope of Work.

- (a) Services. Contractor shall perform the Services described in Exhibit A, subject to all terms and conditions in the Contract. Contractor shall not receive additional compensation for the performance of any Services not described therein.
- (b) *Modification*. City, at any time, by written order, may make changes within the general scope of the work under this Agreement or issue additional instructions, require additional work or direct deletion of work. Contractor shall not proceed with any change involving an increase or decrease in the Contract Price, as defined in Section 4 of this Agreement, without prior written authorization from City. Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation for the performance of any such unauthorized work. Contractor further waives any and all right or remedy by way of restitution or

quantum meruit for any and all extra or changed work performed without express and prior written authorization of City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor shall promptly commence and diligently complete any change to the work subject to City's written authorization issued pursuant to this Section; Contractor shall not be relieved or excused from its prompt commencement of diligent completion of any change subject to City's written authorization by virtue of the absence or inability of Contractor and City to agree upon the extent of any adjustment to the completion schedule or Contract Price on account of such change. The issuance of a change order pursuant to this Section 3 in connection with any change authorized by City shall not be deemed a condition precedent to Contractor's obligation to promptly commence and diligently complete any such change authorized by City hereunder. City's right to make changes shall not invalidate the Contract nor relieve Contractor of any liability or other obligations under the Contract. Any requirement of notice of changes in the scope of work to Contractor's surety shall be the responsibility of Contractor.

- (c) Specific Materials & Performance of Work. Contractor shall furnish all tools, equipment, facilities, labor, and materials necessary to perform and complete, in good workmanlike manner, the work of general construction as called for and in the manner designated in, and in strict conformity with, the plans and specifications for said work entitled, "Special Provisions for Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room." The equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material shall be furnished, and said work performed and completed as required by the Contract under the direction and supervision, and subject to the approval, of the City Engineer or City Engineer's designated agent.
- (d) *Exhibits*. All "Exhibits" referred to below or attached hereto are, by this reference, incorporated into the Contract.

	Exhibit Designation	Exhibit Title
1.	Exhibit A	Contractor's Proposal for Services
2.	Exhibit B	Payment by Force Account
3.	Exhibit C	Workers' Compensation Insurance Certification
4.	Exhibit D	Performance Bond
5.	Exhibit E	Payment Bond

- (a) If the work performed is on the basis of unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, the change order will be determined in accordance with the provisions in Section 4-1.05, "Changes and Extra Work", of the Caltrans Standard Specifications, as applicable; or
- (b) If the work performed is not included on the engineer's estimate associated with a unit price, the change order will be by a mutually agreed lump sum; or

CITY CONTRACT NO. __-CITY PROJECT NO. 24-010

- (c) If the change order is not determined as described above in either subdivision (a) or (b), the change order will be determined on the basis of force account in accordance with the provisions set forth in **Exhibit B**, "Payment by Force Account," attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- **5. Time for Performance**. The time fixed for the commencement of work under the Contract is within ten (10) working days after the Notice to Proceed has been issued. The work on this project shall be substantially completed on or before the expiration of **Thirty (30)** working days (the "<u>Substantial Completion Due Date</u>") beginning on the first day of work or no later than the tenth day after the Notice to Proceed has been issued. All work on this project, including all punch list items, shall be completed on or before the expiration of **Forty (40)** working days (the "<u>Final Completion Due Date</u>") beginning on the first day of work or no later than the tenth day after the Notice to Proceed has been issued.
- (a) Right of City to Increase Working Days: If Contractor fails to complete the Services by the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates, the City Engineer shall have the right to increase the number of working days in the amount the City Engineer may determine will best serve the interests of City, and if the City Engineer desires to increase said number of working days, the City Engineer shall have the further right to charge Contractor and deduct from the final payment for the work the actual cost of engineering, inspection, superintendence, and other overhead expenses which are directly chargeable to Contractor, and which accrue during the period of such extension, except that the cost of the final service and preparation of the final estimates shall not be included in such charges. No extension of time for completion of Services under the Contract shall be considered unless requested by Contractor at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates, in writing, to the City Engineer.

The Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates may only be changed by a contract change order. The value of any work covered by a contract change order for an adjustment in the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates will be determined as follows:

- i. Additional working days will be awarded where the amount of time is mutually agreed upon by Contractor and the City Engineer; or
- ii. Additional working days will be awarded where Contractor is prevented from completing any part of the work identified on the critical path and:
 - 1. where the delay is caused by acts of public enemy, fire, floods, tsunamis, earthquakes, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, labor disputes, shortage of materials and freight embargos, provided that Contractor shall notify Engineer in writing of the causes of delay within fifteen (15) days from the beginning of that delay; or
 - 2. where the delay is caused by actions beyond the control of Contractor; or
 - 3. where the delay is caused by actions or failure to act by the City Engineer.

Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates for delays within the control of Contractor. Delays resulting from and within the control of a subcontractor or supplier of Contractor shall be deemed to be delays within the control of Contractor.

- (b) Excusable Delays. Contractor shall not be in breach of the Contract in the event that performance of Services is temporarily interrupted or discontinued due to a "Force Majeure" event which is defined as: riots, wars, sabotage, civil disturbances, insurrections, or explosions; natural disasters, such as floods, earthquakes, landslides, and fires; strikes, lockouts, and other labor disturbances; or other catastrophic events, which are beyond the reasonable control of Contractor. Force Majeure does not include Contractor's financial inability to perform, Contractor's failure to obtain any necessary permits or licenses from other governmental agencies, or Contractor's failure to obtain the right to use the facilities of any public utility where such failure is due solely to the acts or omissions of Contractor. If Contractor's performance of the Services is delayed by an excusable delay, the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates shall be extended for such reasonable time as determined by the City Engineer. Extensions in time must be requested by Contractor within fifteen (15) calendar days of the excusable delay in order to receive consideration.
- (c) Emergency Additional Time for Performance Procurement of Materials. If, because of war or other declared national emergency, the federal or state government restricts, regulates, or controls the procurement and allocation of labor or materials, or both, and if solely because of said restrictions, regulations or controls, Contractor is, through no fault of Contractor, unable to perform the Services, or the work is thereby suspended or delayed, any of the following steps may be taken:
 - i. City may, pursuant to resolution of the City Council, grant Contractor additional time for the performance of the Contract, sufficient to compensate in time, for delay or suspension.

To qualify for such extension in time, Contractor within ten (10) days of Contractor's discovering such inability to perform, shall notify the City Engineer in writing thereof, and give specific reasons therefore; the City Engineer shall thereupon have sixty (60) days within which to procure such needed materials or labor as is specified in this agreement, or permit substitution, or provide for changes in the work in accordance with subdivision (b) of this Section.

Substituted materials, or changes in the work, or both, shall be ordered in writing by the City Engineer, and the concurrence of the City Council shall not be necessary. All reasonable expenses of such procurement incurred by the City Engineer shall be defrayed by the Contractor; or

ii. If such materials or labor cannot be procured through legitimate channels within sixty (60) days after the filing of the aforesaid notice, either Party may, upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the other, terminate this agreement. In such event, Contractor shall be compensated for all work executed upon a unit basis in proportion to the amount of the work completed, or upon a cost-plus-ten-percent (10%) basis, whichever is the lesser. Materials on the ground, in process of fabrication or in route upon the date of notice of termination specially ordered for the Project and which cannot be utilized by Contractor, shall be compensated for by

City at cost, including freight, provided Contractor shall take all steps possible to minimize this obligation; or

iii. The City Council, by resolution, may suspend the Contract until the cause of inability to perform is removed for a period of not to exceed sixty (60) days.

If the Contract is not canceled, and the inability of Contractor to perform continues without fault on Contractor's part, beyond the time during which the Contract may have been suspended, as herein above provided, the City Council may further suspend the Contract, or either Party hereto may, without incurring any liability, elect to declare the Contract terminated upon the ground of impossibility of performance. In the event City declares this agreement terminated, such declaration shall be authorized by the City Council by resolution, and Contractor shall be notified in writing thereof within five (5) days after the adoption of such resolution. Upon such termination, Contractor shall be entitled to proportionate compensation at the Contract Price for such portion of the Contract as may have been performed; or

iv. City may terminate the Contract, in which case Contractor shall be entitled to proportionate compensation at the agreed rate for such portion of the Contract as may have been performed. Such termination shall be authorized by resolution of the City Council. Notice thereof shall be forthwith given in writing to Contractor, and the Contract shall be terminated upon receipt by Contractor of such notice.

In the event of the termination provided in this sub-paragraph (iv), none of the covenants, conditions or provisions hereof shall apply to the Services not performed, and City shall be liable to Contractor for the proportionate compensation last herein mentioned.

Delay Damages. In the event Contractor, for any reason, fails to perform the Services to the satisfaction of the City Engineer by the Substantial Completion Due Date, City may, in accordance with Section 7203 of the Public Contract Code, in lieu of any other of its rights authorized by Section 6 of this agreement, deduct from payments or credits due Contractor after such breach a sum equal to Five Hundred Twenty and no/100ths Dollars (\$520.00) for each calendar day beyond the Substantial Completion Due Date. Upon Substantial Completion of the work, and in the event Contractor, for any reason, fails to perform the Services to the satisfaction of the City Engineer by the Final Completion Due Date, City may, in accordance with Section 7203 of the Public Contract Code, in lieu of any other of its rights authorized by Section 6 of this agreement, deduct from payments or credits due Contractor after such breach a sum equal to **One Hundred and Fifty** and no/100ths Dollars (\$150.00) for each calendar day beyond the Final Completion Due Date. This deduction shall not be considered a penalty but shall be considered as delay damages. The aforementioned rate of deduction is an amount agreed to by the Parties as reasonably representing additional construction engineering costs incurred by City if Contractor fails to complete the Services by the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates. However, any deduction assessed as delay damages shall not relieve Contractor from liability for any damages or costs resulting from delays to other contractors on the project or other projects caused by a failure of the assessed Contractor to complete the Services by the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates. Due account shall be taken of any time extensions granted to Contractor

by City. Permitting Contractor to continue work beyond the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates shall not operate as a waiver on the part of City of any of its rights under the Contract nor shall it relieve Contractor from liability for any damages or costs resulting from delays to other contractors on the project or other projects caused by a failure of the assessed Contractor to complete the Services by the Substantial and Final Completion Due Dates.

6. Termination.

- Option of City to Terminate Contract for Failure to Complete Services. If a Party should fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder within the time and in the manner herein provided, or otherwise violates any of the terms of the Contract (the "Defaulting Party"), the other Party shall give notice to the Defaulting Party and allow the Defaulting Party ten (10) days to correct such deficiency. If the Defaulting Party does not correct such deficiency, the other Party may immediately terminate the Contract by giving written notice of such termination, stating the reason for such termination. In such event, Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for all Services satisfactorily rendered until such termination, provided, however, there shall be deducted from such amount the amount of damage, if any, sustained by virtue of any breach of the Contract by Contractor, including Delay Damages. If payment under the Contract is based upon a lump sum in total or by individual task, payment for Services satisfactorily rendered shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to the total fees specified in this Agreement as the Services satisfactorily rendered hereunder by Contractor to the total services otherwise required to be performed for such total fee, provided, however, that there shall be deducted from such amount the amount of damage, if any sustained by City by virtue of any breach of the Contract by Contractor. Upon termination, Contractor shall deliver copies of all Work Product, as defined in Section 19 of this Agreement, to City. If District terminates the Contract before Contractor commences any Services hereunder, City shall not be obligated to make any payment to Contractor.
- If Contractor should be adjudged bankrupt or if it should make a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed on account of its insolvency, or if it or any of its subcontractors should violate any of the provisions of the Contract, City may serve written notice upon it and its surety of its intention to terminate the Contract. Such notice shall contain the reasons for City's intention to terminate the Contract, and unless such violations shall cease within five (5) calendar days after serving of such notice, the Contract shall cease and terminate upon the expiration of said five (5) calendar days. In the event of any such termination, City shall immediately serve written notice thereof upon the surety and Contractor, and the surety shall have the right to take over and perform the Contract; provided however, that, if the surety does not give City written notice of its intention to take over and perform the Contract or does not commence performance thereof within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the service of such notice, City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or any other method it may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Contractor, and Contractor and its surety shall be jointly liable to City for any excess cost occasioned City thereby, and in such event City may, without liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, and other property belonging to Contractor as may be on the Project site and necessary thereof.
- 7. Liability for Breach: Neither Party waives the right to recover direct damages against the other for breach of the Contract, including any amount necessary to compensate City for all detriment proximately caused by Contractor's failure to perform its obligations hereunder or which in the ordinary course of things would be likely to result therefrom. City reserves the right to offset such damages

against any payments owed to Contractor. City shall not, in any manner, be liable for special or consequential damages, including but not limited to Contractor's actual or projected lost profits had Contractor completed the Services required by the Contract. In the event of termination by either Party, copies of all finished or unfinished Work Product, as defined in Section 19 of this Agreement, shall become the property of City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall City be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with the Contract or the Services performed in connection with the Contract.

8. Compensation: City shall make payments to Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 9 of the City Standards in legally executed and regularly issued warrants of City, drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required by law and order of the City Council thereof. Contractor shall be administered a progress payment approximately every thirty (30) calendar days from the time work begins according to the payment schedule furnished by the City Engineer at the time work begins. Contractor shall provide access at all reasonable times to all reports, contract records, contract documents, contract files, and personnel necessary to audit and verify Contractor's charges to City under this Contract.

Monthly progress payments in the amount of 95 percent (95%) of the value of the work will be made to Contractor based on the Contractor's estimate and the schedule of prices contained in the accepted bid. The remaining 5 percent (5%) will be retained by City as partial security for the fulfillment of the Contract except that at any time after 50 percent (50%) of the work has been completed, if the City Engineer finds that satisfactory progress is being made and the Project's critical path of work are on schedule, City may discontinue any further retention. Such discontinuance will only be made upon the written request of Contractor. City may, at any time the City Engineer finds that satisfactory progress is not being made, again institute retention of 5 percent (5%) as specified above. Payment will be made as soon as possible after the preparation of the Contractor's estimate. City shall pay the remaining 5 percent (5%) of the value of the Services completed under this Contract, if unencumbered by retentions for claims, not sooner than the expiration of thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of recordation of the Notice of Completion, pursuant to Section 2 of this agreement, and not later than sixty (60) days from the "completion" of the Services as said term is defined in Public Contract Code section 7107(c).

No estimate or payment shall be made if, in the judgment of the City Engineer, the work is not proceeding in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, or when, in his judgment, the total value of the work done since the last estimate amounts to less than \$1,000. No progress payments will be made if the time allotted for the job is thirty (30) working days or less. Payment of any progress payment, or the acceptance thereof by Contractor, shall not constitute acceptance of the work performed under this Contractor, or any portion thereof, and shall in no way reduce the liability of Contractor to replace unsatisfactory work or materials, though the unsatisfactory character of such work or materials may not have been apparent or detected at the time such payment was made.

Additionally, as a precondition to City's progress payments hereunder, Contractor shall provide to City, prior to payment, unconditional waivers and releases of stop notices pursuant to Civil Code section 8128 et seq. from each subcontractor and materials supplier. The form of said waivers and releases shall be as set forth in Civil Code section 3262(d)(2).

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 22300 et seq., Contractor may request the right to substitute securities for any moneys withheld by City to ensure the performance required of Contractor under the Contract, or that City make payment of retentions earned directly into an escrow account established at the expense of Contractor.

- 9. Disputes Pertaining to Payment for Work: Should any dispute arise respecting the true value of any work performed, of any work omitted, or of any extra work which Contractor may be required to do, or respecting the size of any payment to Contractor during the performance of the Contract, such dispute shall be decided by the City Engineer, and the decision of the latter shall be final and conclusive. The Parties agree to comply with the claims resolution procedures set forth in Public Contract Code section 9204 when applicable.
- (a) Claims Processing. Any submission of a claim by Contractor must comply with the requirements of Public Contract Code section 9204. Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, City shall conduct a reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed forty-five (45) days, shall provide Contractor a written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a claim, the Parties may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period provided in this subdivision. Contractor shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within sixty (60) days after City issues its written statement. If Contractor disputes City's written response, or if City fails to respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, Contractor may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.
- (b) Meet-and-Confer Conference. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, City shall schedule a meet-and-confer conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute. Within ten (10) business days following the conclusion of the meet-and-confer conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in dispute, City shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within sixty (60) days after the City issues its written statement.
- (c) Nonbinding Mediation. Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by Contractor in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the Parties sharing the associated costs equally. The Parties shall mutually agree to a mediator within ten (10) business days after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If the Parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each Party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject judicial review pursuant to Section 23 of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any claim, dispute, or other disagreement between the Parties regarding performance under the Contract, the scope of work hereunder, or any other matter arising out of or related to, in any manner, the Contract, Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Services in accordance with City's written direction, pending any final determination or decision regarding any such claim, dispute, or disagreement.

10. Permits and Care of Work: Contractor shall, at Contractor's expense, obtain all necessary permits and licenses for the construction of each improvement, give all necessary notices and pay all fees and taxes required by law, except those City fees set forth in Section 1 of the Special Provisions. Contractor has examined the Project site and is familiar with its topography and condition, location of property lines, easements, building lines, and other physical factors and limitations affecting the performance of the Contract. Contractor, at Contractor's expense, shall obtain any permission necessary for any operations conducted off the property owned or controlled by City. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of all materials delivered and work performed until completion and final acceptance.

11. Public Works and Payment of Prevailing Wage:

(a) *Monitoring and Enforcement*. In accordance with the provisions of Sections 1725.5, 1771.1, 1771.3, and 1771.4 of the Labor Code, all work performed under the Contract is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations ("DIR"). All work performed by Contractor or its subcontractors under the Contract is subject to the requirements of Labor Code section 1720 et seq. It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered contractor to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code at the time the contract is awarded. Contractor and its subcontractors shall furnish the records specified in Section 1776 of the Labor Code directly to the Labor Commissioner, at least monthly, in the format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 1773.3 of the Labor Code, City shall provide notice to DIR of the award of this Contract within thirty (30) working days of the award. The notice shall be transmitted electronically in a format specified by DIR and shall include the name of Contractor, any subcontractor listed on the successful bid, the bid and contract award dates, the contract amount, the estimated start and completion dates, Project location, and any additional information DIR specifies that aids in the administration and enforcement of Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code.

- (b) Wages & Hours of Employment: In the performance of the Services under the Contract, eight (8) hours shall be the maximum hours of labor on any calendar day, and the minimum wages of compensation of persons performing labor in the execution of this agreement shall be the current prevailing scale of wages determined by DIR for the community. Contractor shall forfeit as penalty Twenty-five and no/100ths Dollars (\$25.00) to be paid to City for each workman employed in the execution of the Contract by Contractor or its subcontractor(s), for each calendar day during which any workman is required or permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours, in violation of provisions of Labor Code section 1810 et seq. Contractor shall post prevailing wage rates at the Project no later than the first day Contractor commences performance of the Services under the Contract.
- 12. Superintendence by Contractor: Contractor shall give personal superintendence to the work on the Project or have a competent foreman or superintendent satisfactory to the City Engineer on the Project at all times during construction and performance of work under the Contract, with authority to act for Contractor.

- 13. Inspection and Testing by City: Contractor shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City to all parts of the work performed on the Project and to the shops wherein the work is in preparation. Contractor shall notify City with sufficient time in advance of the manufacture of production materials to be supplied by Contractor under the Contract in order for City to arrange for mill or factory inspection and testing of same. Any materials shipped by Contractor from factory prior to having satisfactorily passed such testing and inspection by City's representative or prior to the receipt of notice from such representative that such testing and inspection will not be required shall not be incorporated on the Project. Contractor shall also furnish to City, in triplicate, certified copies of all factory and mill test reports upon request.
- 14. Conformity with Law and Safety: Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal, and local governing bodies having jurisdiction over any or all of the scope of Services, including all provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 as amended, all California Occupational Safety and Health Regulations, the California Building Code, the American with Disabilities Act, any copyright, patent, or trademark law, and all other applicable federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations, appropriate trade association safety standards, and appropriate equipment manufacturer instructions. All Services performed by Contractor or its subcontractors must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations. Contractor's failure to comply with any laws, ordinances, codes, or regulations applicable to the performance of the Services hereunder shall constitute a breach of contract. In cases where standards conflict, the standard providing the highest degree of protection shall prevail.

If a death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in connection with the performance of the Contract, Contractor shall immediately notify City's risk manager by telephone. If any accident occurs in connection with the Contract, Contractor shall promptly submit a written report to City, in such form as City may require. This report shall include the following information: (a) name and address of the injured or deceased person(s); (b) name and address of Contractor's subcontractor, if any; (c) name and address of Contractor's liability insurance carrier; and (d) a detailed description of the accident, including whether any of City's equipment, tools, or materials were involved.

If a release of a hazardous material, substance, or waste occurs in connection with the performance of the Contract, Contractor shall immediately notify City. Contractor shall not store hazardous materials or hazardous waste within City limits without a proper permit from City.

- **15. Other Contracts:** City may award other contracts for additional work on the Project, and Contractor shall fully cooperate with such other contractors and carefully fit Contractor's own work to that provided under other contracts as may be directed by the City Engineer. Contractor shall not commit or permit any act which will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor.
- **16. Bonds:** Concurrently with the execution hereof, Contractor shall furnish, on the forms provided herein as **Exhibits D and E**, respectively, corporate surety bonds to the benefit of City, issued by a surety company acceptable to City and authorized and admitted to do business in the state of California, as follows:

- (a) Faithful Performance Bond. In an amount equal to at least one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price as security for the faithful performance of the Contract. The bond shall contain a provision that the surety thereon waives the provisions of Sections 2819 and 2845 of the Civil Code.
- (b) *Payment Bond.* In an amount equal to at least one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor and furnishing materials in connection with the Contract. The bond shall be in accordance with the provisions of Sections 3225, 3226, and 3247 through 3252, inclusive, of the Civil Code and Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code of California. Said bond shall also contain a provision that the surety thereon waives the provisions of Sections 2819 and 2845 of the Civil Code.

The surety companies shall familiarize themselves with all provisions and conditions of the Contract. It is understood and agreed that the surety or sureties waive the right of special notification of any modification or alterations, omissions or reductions, extra or additional work, extensions of time, or any other act or acts by City or its authorized agents under the terms of this Contract and failure to so notify the surety or sureties of such changes shall in no way relieve the surety or sureties of their obligations under the Contract.

17. Indemnification:

- (a) Indemnity for Professional Liability. When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Contractor's Services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless City and any and all of its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers ("City's Agents") from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses, including legal counsel's fees and costs but only to the extent Contractor or its subcontractors are responsible for such damages, liabilities and costs on a comparative basis of fault between Contractor or its subcontractors and City in the performance of professional services under the Contract. Contractor shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify City for City's own negligence or for the negligence of others.
- (b) Indemnity for other than Professional Liability. Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City and any and City's Agents from and against any liability, including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including legal counsel's fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees, where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of the Contract by Contractor or by any individual or agency for which Contractor is legally liable, including, but not limited to, officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors of Contractor.
- 18. Contractor's Insurance: Concurrently with the execution hereof, Contractor shall furnish City with satisfactory proof of carriage of the insurance required under this section, and that Contractor shall give City at least thirty (30) days prior notice of the cancellation of any policy during the Term of this contract. Contractor shall not commence work under this Agreement until Contractor has obtained

City's approval regarding all insurance requirements, forms, endorsements, amounts, and carrier ratings, nor shall Contractor allow any subcontractor to commence work on a subcontract until all similar insurance required of the subcontractor shall have been so obtained and approved. Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may constitute a material breach of the Contract. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits and coverage shall be available to City.

- (a) Commercial General Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per occurrence, Four Million Dollars (\$4,000,000.00) general aggregate, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) products and completed operations aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including, without limitation, blanket contractual liability and coverage for explosion, collapse, and underground property damage hazards. The policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
 - (1) City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. The coverage shall be provided in the form of an endorsement to Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as CG 20 10 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 for products/completed operations.
 - (2) For any claims related to the Project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall allow and be endorsed primary insurance as respects City and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
 - (3) In the event of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that reduces or restricts the insurance coverage afforded to City under the Contract, the insurer, broker/producer, or Contractor shall provide City with thirty (30) days' prior written notice of such cancellation, non-renewal, or material change.
 - (4) Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the sole negligence of the additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.
- (b) *Workers' Compensation Insurance*. Contractor shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer's Liability Insurance with limits of at least One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) each accident, One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) by disease-policy limit, and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) by disease-each employee.

- (c) Commercial Auto Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial auto liability coverage for owned, non-owned, and hired autos using ISO Business Auto Coverage form CA 00 01, or the exact equivalent, with a limit of no less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per accident. The policy shall provide and be endorsed that the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers are included or named as additional insureds. If Contractor owns no vehicles, this requirement may be met through a non-owned auto coverage or an endorsement to the CGL policy.
- (d) *Builder's Risk Insurance*. Upon commencement of construction and with approval of City, Contractor shall obtain and maintain Builder's Risk/Course of Construction insurance. The policy shall be provided for replacement value on an "all-risk" basis. City shall be named as Loss Payee on the policy and there shall be no coinsurance penalty provision in any such policy. The policy must include: (1) coverage for removal of debris and insuring the buildings, structures, machinery, equipment, materials, facilities, fixtures, and all other properties constituting a part of the project; (2) coverage with limits sufficient to insure the full replacement value of any property or equipment stored either on or off the project site, whether provided from within a Builder's Risk policy or through the addition of an Installation Floater. Such insurance shall be on a form acceptable to City to ensure adequacy of terms and limits. Contractor shall not be required to maintain property insurance for any portion of the Project following transfer of control thereof to City.
- (e) Contractors Pollution Insurance. Pollution Coverage shall be maintained on a Contractors Pollution Liability form, or other form acceptable to City, providing coverage for liability arising out of sudden, accidental, and gradual pollution and remediation. The policy limit shall be no less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per claim. All activities contemplated in the Contract shall be specifically scheduled on the policy as "covered operations." The policy shall provide coverage for the hauling of waste from the Project site to the final disposal location, including non-owned disposal sites. The policy shall provide and be endorsed to include the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers as insureds.

(f) Professional Liability Insurance. [Intentionally Omitted]

- (g) *Umbrella or Excess Policy*. Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true "following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance. No coverage or insurance policies maintained by the Additional Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.
- (h) *Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions*. Upon request of City, any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the option of City, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions

as respects City and City's Agents; or (2) Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

- (i) *Acceptability of Insurers*. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A-:VII or with an insurer to which City has provided prior approval.
- (j) Verification of Coverage. Contractor shall furnish City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this Section 18. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by City before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive Contractor's obligation to provide them. City reserves the right, at any time, to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.
- (k) Waiver of Subrogation. With the exception of professional liability, Contractor hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. The commercial general liability policy, automobile liability policy, and workers' compensation policy shall be endorsed to contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of City for all work performed by Contractor, its agents, employees, independent contractors and subcontractors. Contractor shall provide written proof of waiver of subrogation in the Certificate of Insurance. Additionally, Contractor agrees to obtain any available endorsements that may be necessary to effectuate this waiver of subrogation.
- (1) *Subcontractors*. Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.
- 19. Ownership of Work Product: Any and all work, artwork, copy, posters, billboards, photographs, videotapes, audiotapes, systems designs, software, reports, designs, specifications, drawings, diagrams, surveys, source codes, professional or technical information or data, photographs, notes, letters, emails, or any original works of authorship created by contractor or its subcontractors or subcontractors in connection with Services performed under the Contract ("Work Product") shall be works for hire as defined under Title 17 of the United States Code, and all copyrights in such works are the property of City. In the event that it is ever determined that any Work Product created by Contractor or its subcontractors or subcontractors under the Contract are not works for hire under U.S. law, Contractor hereby assigns all copyrights to such Work Product to City. With the prior written approval of the City Engineer, Contractor may retain and use copies of such Work Product for reference and as documentation of its experience and capabilities.

All Work Product shall become the property of City irrespective of where located or stored and Contractor agrees to deliver all such documents and information to City, without charge and in whatever form it exists, upon the Final Completion Date, as may be extended. Contractor shall have no ownership interest in such Work Product.

All Work Product of Contractor under the Contract, including written information which City will cause to be distributed for either internal or public circulation, including both preliminary and final drafts, shall be delivered to City in both printed and electronic form, or as may be specific in Exhibit A.

When the Contract is terminated, Contractor agrees to return to City all documents, drawings, photographs, and other written or graphic material, however produced, that it received from City or City's Agents, in connection with the performance of its Services under the Contract. All materials shall be returned in the same condition as received.

- **20. Taxes:** Payment of any taxes, including California sales and use taxes, levied upon the Contract, the transaction, or the Services or goods delivered pursuant hereto, shall be the obligation of Contractor. Contractor shall cooperate with City to the full extent possible to maximize the local allocation of California sales and use tax to City. Such cooperation shall include, but not be limited to:
 - (a) *Use Tax Direct Payment Permits*. Contractor shall apply for, obtain, and utilize, to the maximum extent reasonable, a California Use Tax Direct Payment Permit.
 - (b) *Purchases of \$500,000 or More*. Contractor shall require vendors and suppliers located outside California from whom Contractor makes purchases of \$500,000 or more to allocate the use tax to City.
- 21. Independent Contractor: At all times during the Term of the Contract, Contractor shall be deemed to be an independent contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which Contractor performs the Services required under the Contract. Contractor shall be liable for its acts and omissions, and those of its employees, contractors, subcontractors, representatives, volunteers, and its agents. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating an employment, agency, or partnership relationship between City and Contractor. City shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the result of Contractor's Services rendered pursuant to the Contract; however, City shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to the Contract.
- **22. Contractor Not Agent:** Except as City may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to the Contract to bind City to any obligation whatsoever.
- 23. Arbitration of Disputes: All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between City and Contractor arising out of, or relating to, this Contract or the breach thereof, including claims of Contractor for extra compensation of Services related to the project, shall be decided by arbitration before a single arbitrator in accordance with the provisions of Sections 1281 through 1284.2 of the Code of Civil Procedure (the "Arbitration Laws") unless the Parties mutually agree otherwise. The provisions of Section 1283.05 of the Arbitration Laws apply to any arbitration proceeding except as otherwise provided in the Contract. The arbitrator shall have authority to decide all issues between the Parties including, but not limited to, claims for extras, delay, and liquidated damages, if any, provided for the Contract, matters involving defects in the Services performed by Contractor or its subcontractors, rights to payment, and whether the necessary procedures for arbitration have been followed. The award rendered by the arbitrator shall be final and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having competent jurisdiction thereof.

Notice of the demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other Party. The demand for arbitration shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in question has arisen, and in no event shall it be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute, or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

The parties shall jointly appoint an arbitrator within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of giving the notice of the demand for arbitration. If the Parties are unable to jointly agree upon the appointment of an arbitrator within said fifteen (15) calendar day period, and do not agree in writing to extend said period for a fixed period, then either Party may seek to have the arbitrator appointed by the Superior Court of Stanislaus County in accordance with the Arbitration Laws.

If any proceeding is brought to contest the right to arbitrate and it is determined that such right exists, the losing Party shall pay all costs and attorney's fees incurred by the prevailing Party.

In addition to the other rules of law which may be applicable to any arbitration hereunder, the following shall apply:

- (a) Promptly upon the filing of the arbitration, each Party shall be required to set forth in writing and to serve upon each other Party a detailed statement of its contentions of fact and law.
- (b) All Parties to the arbitration shall be entitled to the discovery procedures provided under Section 1283.05 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.
- (c) The arbitration shall be commenced and conducted as expeditiously as possible consistent with affording reasonable discovery as provided herein.
 - (d) These additional rules shall be implemented and applied by the arbitrator.

The costs of arbitration shall be borne by the Parties as determined by the arbitrator, but each Party shall bear its own attorney's fees associated with the dispute with the other Party and to the arbitration.

All administrative remedies required under Section 9 of this Agreement or pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, or required by any other law, shall be exhausted prior to commencement of any arbitration under this Section 23.

- **24. Provisions Cumulative:** The provisions of the Contract are cumulative, and in addition to and not in limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to City.
- 25. Notices: All notices shall be in writing and delivered in person or transmitted by certified mail, postage prepaid. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving ten (10) days' written notice to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or communications shall be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below.

If to City:	City of Turlock Attn: City Engineer 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380-5461	
With courtesy copies to:	City of Turlock, City Attorney's Office Attn: George A. Petrulakis, City Attorney 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230 Turlock, CA 95380-5456	
If to Contractor:		
If to Contractor's Sureties:		

26. City Contract Administrator: The City's contract administrator and contact person for this Agreement is:

Oscar Molina, E.I.T.
City of Turlock Engineering Division 156 S. Broadway, Suite 150
Turlock, California 95380-5461
Telephone: (209) 668-5366
E-mail: omolina@turlock.ca.us

- **27. Interpretation:** As used herein, any gender includes each other gender, the singular includes the plural and vice versa.
- **28. Antitrust Claims:** Contractor or its subcontractors offer and agree to assign to City all rights, title, and interest to any causes of action under Section Four of the Clayton Act and the Cartwright Act concerning antitrust claims.
- **29.** Use of City Project Number: Contractor or its subcontractors agree to use the aforementioned City project number on all maps, drawings, submittals, billing, and written correspondence that involve City staff or contracted consultants. Nothing in this section shall preclude Contractor or its subcontractors from using their own project numbers for their own internal use.

- **30. No Conflict of Interest:** Contractor represents that no conflict of interest will be created under state or federal law by entering into or in carrying out the Contract.
- 31. Confidentiality: Contractor understands and agrees that, in the performance of Services under the Contract, or in the contemplation thereof, Contractor may have access to private or confidential information that may be owned or controlled by City and that such information may contain proprietary or confidential details, the disclosure of which to third parties may be damaging to City ("Confidential Information"). Contractor shall not, either during or after the Term, disclose to any third party any Confidential Information without the prior written consent of City. If City gives Contractor written authorization to make any such disclosure, Contractor shall do so only within the limits and to the extent of that authorization. Contractor may be directed or advised by the City Attorney on various matters relating to the performance of Services on the Project or on other matters pertaining to the Project, and in such event, Contractor agrees that it will treat all communications between itself, its employees, and its subcontracts as being communications which are within the attorney-client privilege.
- **32. Modification.** No alteration, amendment, modification, or termination of the Contract shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all Parties to the Contract.
- **Waiver:** No covenant, term, or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed waived, except by written consent of the Party against whom the waiver is claimed, and any waiver of the breach of any covenant, term, or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term, or condition.
- **34. Assignment:** No Party to the Contract shall assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this Agreement in whole or in party to any individual, firm, or corporation without the prior written consent of the other Party. Subject to the foregoing provisions, the Contract shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties hereto.
- **35. Authority:** All Parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that they have the power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the names, titles, and capacities herein stated on behalf of any entities, persons, states, or firms represented or purported to be represented by such entities, person, states, or firms and that all former requirements necessary or required by state or federal law in order to enter into the Contract have been fully complied with. Further, by entering into this Agreement, neither Party hereto shall have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to which such Party is obligated, which such breach would have a material effect hereon.
- **36. Governing Law:** The Contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of California.
- 37. Severability: If the Contract in its entirety is determined by an arbitrator or a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Contract shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry of judgment. If any provision of the Contract shall be determined to be invalid and unenforceable, or if any provision of the Contract is rendered invalid or unenforceable according the terms of any federal or state statute, which becomes effective after the Effective Date of this Agreement, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall be construed to give effect to the intent of this Agreement.

- **38. Execution and Counterparts:** This Agreement may be executed simultaneously and, in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The Parties agree that this Agreement and any other documents to be delivered in connection herewith may be electronically signed utilizing services such as DocuSign and Nitro Sign, or by transmitting signatures in pdf or similar format, and that any electronic signatures appearing on this Agreement or such other documents are the same as handwritten signatures for the purposes of validity, enforceability, and admissibility.
- **39. Mandatory and Permissive:** "Shall" and "will" and "agrees" are mandatory. "May" and "can" are permissive.
- **40. Headings:** Headings used in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement.
- 41. Attorney's Fees and Costs: Except as expressly provided for in Section 23 of this Agreement, if any action at law or in equity, including action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of the Contract, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, which may be set by the court in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which such Party may be entitled.
- **42. Necessary Acts and Further Assurances:** The Parties shall, at their own cost and expense, execute and deliver such further documents and instruments and shall take such other actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and purposes of the Contract.
- **43. Recitals:** The recitals set forth above ("<u>Recitals</u>") are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any inconsistency between the Recitals and Section 1 through 43 of this Agreement, Sections 1 through 43 shall prevail.

[Signatures on Following Page]

CITY CONTRACT NO. __-__ CITY PROJECT NO. 24-010 **IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, two identical counterparts of this agreement, consisting of a total of ____ pages, each of which counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed an original of said agreement, have been duly executed by the parties hereinabove named, on the day and year first herein above written.

CONTRACTOR	CITY OF TURLOCK, a municipal corporation		
By:	By: Susan E. Borrego, Interim City Manager		
Print Name	Date:		
Address:	APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY:		
Phone:	By: William D. Morris, RCE, PLS, City Engineer		
Date:	By: Christopher Fisher, Municipal Services Director		
Federal Tax ID or Social Security No:	APPROVED AS TO FORM:		
DIR Registration Number:	By: George A. Petrulakis, City Attorney		
	ATTEST:		
Affix Contractor's Seal Here	By:Nichole Fiez, City Clerk		

39

EXHIBIT A CONTRACTOR'S PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES

40

EXHIBIT B PAYMENT BY FORCE ACCOUNT

For work paid by force account, the City Engineer compares City's records to Contractor's daily force account work report. When the City Engineer and Contractor agree on the contents of the daily force account work reports, the City Engineer accepts the report and City pays for the work. If the records differ, City pays for the work based only on the information shown on City's records. If a subcontractor performs work at force account, work paid at force account will be accepted at an additional 2 percent (2%) markup to the total cost of that work, including markups, as reimbursement for additional administrative costs. The markups specified in labor, materials, and equipment includes compensation for all delay costs, overhead costs, and profit. If an item's unit price is adjusted for work-character changes, City excludes Contractor's cost of determining the adjustment. Payment for owner-operated labor and equipment is made at the market-priced invoice submitted.

- **A. Labor.** Labor payment is full compensation for the cost of labor used in the direct performance of the work plus a fifteen percent (15%) markup, as set forth below, and consistent with California Labor Code section 1770 et seq. Force account labor payment consists of:
 - 1. Employer payment to the worker for:
 - 1.1 Basic hourly wage
 - 1.2 Health and welfare
 - 1.3 Pension
 - 1.4 Vacation
 - 1.5 Training
 - 1.6 Other State and federal recognized fringe benefit payments
 - 2. Labor surcharge percentage in *Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates* current during the work paid at force account for:
 - 2.1 Workers' compensation insurance
 - 2.2 Social security
 - 2.3 Medicare
 - 2.4 Federal unemployment insurance
 - 2.5 State unemployment insurance
 - 2.6 State training taxes
 - 3. Subsistence and travel allowances paid to the workers
 - 4. Employer payment to supervisors, if authorized

The fifteen percent (15%) markup consists of payment for all overhead costs related to labor but not designated as costs of labor used in the direct performance of the work including:

- (a) Home office overhead
- (b) Field office overhead
- (c) Bond costs

- (d) Profit
- (e) Labor liability insurance
- (f) Other fixed or administrative costs that are not costs of labor used in the direct performance of the work
- **B.** Materials. Material payment is full compensation for materials the Contractor furnishes and uses in the work. The City Engineer determines the cost based on the material purchase price, including delivery charges, except:
 - 1. A fifteen percent (15%) markup is added;
 - 2. Supplier discounts are subtracted whether the Contractor takes them or not;
 - 3. If the City Engineer believes the material purchase prices are excessive, City pays the lowest current wholesale price for a similar material quantity;
 - 4. If Contractor procured the materials from a source Contractor wholly or partially own, the determined cost is based on the lower of the:
 - 4.1 Price paid by the purchaser for similar materials from that source on Contract items; and
 - 4.2 Current wholesale price for those materials;
 - If Contractor does not submit a material cost record within thirty (30) days of billing, the determined cost is based on the lowest wholesale price:
 - 5.1 During that period
 - 5.2 In the quantities used
- **C. Equipment Rental.** Equipment rental payment is full compensation for:
 - 1. Rental equipment costs, including moving rental equipment to and from the change order work site using its own power.
 - 2. Transport equipment costs for rental equipment that cannot be transported economically using its own power. No payment is made during transport for the transported equipment.
 - 3. Fifteen percent (15%) percent markup.

If Contractor wants to return the equipment to a location other than its original location, the payment to move the equipment must not exceed the cost of returning the equipment to its original location. If Contractor uses the equipment for work other than work paid by force account, the transportation cost is included in the other work.

Before moving or loading the equipment, Contractor must obtain authorization for the equipment rental's original location.

The City Engineer determines rental costs:

- 1. Using rates in *Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates*:
 - 1.1. By classifying equipment using manufacturer's ratings and manufacturer-approved changes.
 - 1.2. Current during the work paid by force account.
 - 1.3. Regardless of equipment ownership but City uses the rental document rates or minimum rental cost terms if:
 - 1.3.1. Rented from equipment business Contractor does not own.
 - 1.3.2. The Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates hourly rate is \$10.00 per hour or less.
- 2. Using rates established by the City Engineer for equipment not listed in *Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates*. Contractor may submit cost information that helps the City Engineer establish the rental rate but City uses the rental document rates or minimum rental cost terms if:
 - 2.1. Rented from equipment business Contractor does not own.
 - 2.2. The City Engineer establishes a rate of \$10.00 per hour or less.
- 3. Using rates for transport equipment not exceeding the hourly rates charged by established haulers.

Equipment rental rates include the cost of:

- 1. Fuel
- 2. Oil
- 3. Lubrication
- 4. Supplies
- 5. Small tools that are not consumed by use
- 6. Necessary attachments

- 7. Repairs and maintenance
- 8. Depreciation
- 9. Storage
- 10. Insurance
- 11. Incidentals

City pays for small tools consumed by use. The City Engineer determines payment for small tools consumed by use based on Contractor-submitted invoices.

The City Engineer may authorize rates in excess of those in the *Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates* if:

- 1. Contractor submits a request to use rented equipment
- 2. Equipment is not available from Contractor's normal sources or from one of Contractor's subcontractors
- 3. Rented equipment is from an independent rental company
- 4. Proposed equipment rental rate is reasonable

- 5. The City Engineer authorizes the equipment source and the rental rate before Contractor uses the equipment
- **D. Equipment on the Job Site.** For equipment on the job site at the time required to perform work paid by force account, the time paid is the time:
 - 1. To move the equipment to the location of work paid by force account plus an equal amount of time to move the equipment to another location on the job site when the work paid by force account is completed
 - 2. To load and unload equipment
 - 3. Equipment is operated to perform work paid by force account and:
 - 3.1. Hourly rates are paid in 1/2-hour increments
 - 3.2. Daily rates are paid in 1/2-day increments
- **E.** Equipment Not on the Job Site Required for Original-Contract Work. For equipment not on the job site at the time required to perform work paid by force account and required for original-Contract work, the time paid is the time the equipment is operated to perform work paid by force account and the time to move the equipment to a location on the job site when the work paid by force account is completed.

The minimum total time paid is:

- 1. 1 day if daily rates are paid
- 2. 8 hours if hourly rates are paid

If daily rates are recorded, equipment:

- 1. Idled is paid as 1/2 day
- 2. Operated four (4) hours or less is paid as 1/2 day
- 3. Operated four (4) hours or more is paid as one (1) day

If the minimum total time exceeds eight (8) hours and if hourly rates are listed, City rounds up hours operated to the nearest 1/2-hour increment and pays based on the hours shown in the following table. The table does not apply when equipment is not operated due to breakdowns, in which case rental hours are the hours the equipment was operated.

Equipment Rental Hours

Hours	Hours
operated	paid
0.0	4.00
0.5	4.25
1.0	4.50
1.5	4.75
2.0	5.00

2.5	5.25
2.5	5.25
3.0	5.50
3.5	5.75
4.0	6.00
4.5	6.25
5.0	6.50
5.5	6.75
6.0	7.00
6.5	7.25
7.0	7.5
7.5	7.75
≥8.0	hours
	used

- **F.** Equipment Not on the Job Site Not Required for Original-Contract Work. For equipment not on the job site at the time required to perform work paid by force account and not required for original-Contract work, the time paid is the time:
 - 1. To move the equipment to the location of work paid by force account plus an equal amount of time to return the equipment to its source when the work paid by force account is completed
 - 2. To load and unload equipment
 - 3. Equipment is operated to perform work paid by force account
- **G. Non-Owner-Operated Dump Truck Rental.** Contractor shall submit the rental rate for non-owner-operated dump truck rental to City. The City Engineer shall determine the payment rate. Payment for non-owner-operated dump truck rental is for the cost of renting a dump truck, including its driver. For the purpose of markup payment only, the non-owner-operated dump truck is rental equipment and the owner is a subcontractor.

The above markups shall constitute full compensation for all home office overhead, field office overhead, bond costs, profit, labor liability insurance, and other fixed or administrative costs that are not costs specifically designated as cost or equipment rental as stated above. The total payment made as provided above shall be deemed to be the actual cost of the work and shall constitute full compensation therefor.

When extra work to be paid for on a force account basis is performed by a subcontractor, an additional markup of 2 percent (2%) will be added to the total cost of that extra work including all markups specified in this Section. The additional 2 percent (2%) markup shall reimburse Contractor for additional administrative costs, and no other additional payment will be made by reason of performance of the extra work by a subcontractor.

EXHIBIT C

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 18(b) of the Agreement, Contractor certifies as follows:

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.

Signed:	Date:	
(Typed or Printed Name)		
Business Address (Street Address, City, State & Zip Code):		
Rusiness Phone: ()		

EXHIBIT D

PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

RIVOW THE MERVET THESE I RESERVIS.
WHEREAS, the City of Turlock, State of California, has awarded to hereinafter designated as the "Principal," a contract for Project No. 24-010, "Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room"; and,
WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said contract to furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract.
NOW, THEREFORE, we the Principal, and as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Turlock in the penal sum of
for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the above bounden Principal, or Principal's heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in said contract and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on the Principal's part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning and shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City of Turlock, its officers and agents as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.
And the Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that, in accordance with the Plans Standard Specifications, Special Provisions, and other contract documents, no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract, or to the work to be performed hereunder, or to the specifications accompanying the same shall in anywise affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration of additions to the terms of the Contract to the work, or to the specifications.
The City of Turlock reserves the right to refuse use of any Contractor assigned by any surety to complete the work.
[Signatures on Following Page]

47

seals this day of	, the above-bound parties have executed this instrument under their, 20, the name and corporate seals of each corporate e presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to
(Corporate Seal)	Principal
	Ву
	Title
(Attach Notarial Acknowledgment)
(Corporate Seal)	Surety
	Address
	Phone No.: () Fax No.: ()
	ByAttorneys-in-Fact Title
(Attach Notarial Acknowledgment	
NOTE TO SURETY COMPAN resolution of authority for the at	<u>YY</u> : There must be submitted a certified copy of unrevoked torneys-in-fact.
(Seal)	Witness
Approved as to form:	
Risk Manager	

EXHIBIT E

PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, the City of Turlock , a municipal corporation, has awarded to hereinafter designated as the "Principal", a contract for Project No. 24-010, "Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room" ; and
WHEREAS, said Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with said contract, to secure payment of claims of laborers, mechanics, or materialmen employed on work under said contract, as provided by law.
NOW, THEREFORE, we the undersigned Principal and Surety are held and firmly bound unto the
City of Turlock in the sum of(\$
said sum being equal to the estimated amount payable by said City of Turlock under the terms of the
contract, for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, or assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION ARE SUCH that if said Principal, or Principal's heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, or subcontractors shall fail to pay for any material, provisions, provender, or other supplies, implements, or machinery used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work or labor, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Franchise Tax Board from these wages of employees of the Contractor and Contractor's subcontractors pursuant to the Revenue and Taxation Code, with respect to such work and labor, the Surety or Sureties hereon will pay for the same in an amount not exceeding the sum specified in this bond, otherwise the above obligation shall be void. In case suit is brought upon this bond, said Surety will pay a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under Section 3138 of the Civil Code of the State of California so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

Said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that, in accordance with the Plans, Standard Specifications, Special Provisions, and other Contract Documents, no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract, or to the work to be performed there under, or to the specifications accompanying the same, shall in anywise affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract, or to the work, or to the specifications.

[Signatures on Following Page]

	EOF, the above-bound parties have executed this instrument under their of, 20, the name and corporate seals of each
	affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative,
(Corporate Seal)	Principal
	Ву
	Title
(Attach Notarial Acknowledg	ment)
(Corporate Seal)	Surety
	Address
	Phone No.: () Fax No.: ()
	ByAttorneys-in-Fact
	Title
(Attach Notarial Acknowledg	ment)
NOTE TO SURETY COM resolution of authority for the	<u>IPANY</u> : There must be submitted a certified copy of unrevoked he attorneys-in-fact.
(Seal)	Witness
Approved as to form:	
Risk Manager	

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

City Project No: 24-010

Fire Station No. 31 SCBA Compressor Room

SECTION 1 SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS

SPECIAL NOTES:

- Official bid documents including plans and specifications are available online at http://www.cityofturlock.org/capitalprojects. All bids submitted for this project must conform to the requirements of the official bid documents.
- 2. A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held on May 7th, 2025 at 2:00PM at Fire Station No. 31.

1.01 HIERARCHY OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

The work described herein shall be done in accordance with the current City of Turlock Standard Specifications and the current edition of the State of California, Department of Transportation Standard Specifications and Standard Plans in effect on the date that the bid was submitted by the Contractor and in accordance with the following Special Provisions.

The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.

It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to produce the intended result will be provided whether or not specifically called for at no additional cost to City.

Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents shall be issued by Engineer.

In case of conflict or discrepancy between any of the Contract Documents, the order of documents listed below shall be the order of precedence for the purpose of claims review, with the first item listed having the highest precedence. Contractor shall submit a Request for Information (RFI) to the Engineer immediately upon discovery of conflicting information in any of the Contract Documents prior to proceeding with the work that may be impacted by such conflicting information.

- 1. Contract Change Order (Modifications or changes last in time are first in precedence).
- 2. Addenda to Contract Agreement
- 3. Contract Agreement
- 4. Permits
- 5. Special Provisions
- 6. Technical Specifications included in bid specifications as an appendix
- 7. Notice Inviting Bids and Instructions to Bidders
- 8. Project Drawings

- 9. City of Turlock Standard Specifications
- 10. City of Turlock Standard Drawings
- 11. Caltrans Standard Specifications
- 12. Caltrans Standard Plans

With regards to discrepancies or conflicts between written dimensions given on drawings and the scaled measurements, the written dimensions shall govern.

With regards to discrepancies or conflicts between large-scale drawings and small-scale drawings, the larger scale shall govern.

With regards to discrepancies or conflicts between detailed drawings and referenced standard drawings or plans, the detailed drawings shall govern.

In the event where provisions of codes, safety orders, contract documents, referenced manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive and higher quality shall govern.

Should it appear that the work to be done or any of the matters relative thereto are not sufficiently detailed or explained in these specifications, the special provisions, or the plans, the Contractor shall apply to the Engineer in writing for such further explanations as may be necessary and shall conform to them as part of the contract. All responses from the Engineer shall also be in writing. In the event of any doubt or question arising respecting the true meaning of these specifications, the special provisions or the plans, reference shall be made to the Engineer, whose decision thereon shall be final.

1.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY:

The Contractor shall examine carefully the site of the work and the plans and specifications therefore. The Contractor shall investigate to their satisfaction as to conditions to be encountered, the character, quality and quantity of surface, subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered, the work to be performed, materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the bid, plans and specifications of the contract.

1.03 COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

Pursuant to the California Public Contract Code, the bidder is required to review architectural or engineering plans and specifications prior to submission of a bid, and report any errors and omissions noted by Contractor to the Architect, Engineer or Owner five days prior to the bid opening date.

SECTION 2 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

2.01 GENERAL:

The Contractor's attention is directed to the "Notice to Contractor" for the date, time and location of the mandatory Pre-Bid meeting, if applicable.

The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Proposal for this bid for the requirements and conditions which the bidder must observe in the preparation of and the submission of the bid.

The bidder's bond shall conform to the bond form in the Bid book for the project and shall be properly filled out and executed. The bidder's bond form included in that book must be used.

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Non-Collusion Affidavit is included in the Bid book. Signing the Bid book shall also constitute signature of the Non-Collusion Affidavit.

The contractor, sub recipient, or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of Title 49 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) part 26 in the award and administration of US DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. Each subcontract signed by the bidder must include this assurance.

Failure of the bidder to fulfill the requirements of the Special Provisions for submittals required to be furnished after bid opening, including but not limited to escrowed bid documents, where applicable, may subject the bidder to a determination of the bidder's responsibility in the event it is the apparent low bidder on future public works contracts.

2.02 EXISTING UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND SITE CONDITIONS:

The actual sizes, locations and materials of existing utilities and facilities shown on the plans may vary from what is shown on the plans. Attention is directed to the possible existence of underground facilities not indicated on the plans or in the special provisions. Contractor shall be responsible for verifying the locations and nature of the existing utilities, protecting them from damage and notifying Engineer of their location and nature.

Contractor shall examine carefully the site of the work. It is assumed that Contractor has investigated and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered as to the character, quality and quantities of work to be performed.

Unless otherwise noted in a geotechnical report made available to the Contractor for the project, Contractor shall assume for bidding purposes that near surface native soil material is generally homogenous and that soil meets the uniform soil classification of a silty sand (SM) without cementation.

If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed either:

- 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any technical data on which Contractor is entitled to rely is materially inaccurate; or
- 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Contract Documents; or
- 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
- 4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith, notify Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith until instructed in writing to do so. After receipt of written notice, Engineer will promptly

review the pertinent condition and advise in writing (with a copy to Contractor) of Engineer's findings and conclusions.

The Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the existence of such differing subsurface or physical condition causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; provided that such condition meets any one or more of the categories described in the paragraphs above.

Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times if:

- 1. Contractor knew of the existence of such conditions prior to the submission of a Bid; or
- 2. the existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's submittal of a bid; or
- 3. Contractor failed to give the written notice as required above.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment (including dewatering devices), and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved with and/or in verifying existing utilities, facilities, site and subsurface conditions as specified above, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore

SECTION 3 AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT

3.01 GENERAL:

The Contractor's attention is directed to the provisions in the Contract for the requirements and conditions concerning award and execution of contract.

The award of the contract, if it be awarded, will be to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid complies with all the requirements prescribed.

The contract shall be executed by the successful bidder and shall be returned, together with the contract bonds and insurance, to the City so that it is received within 10 working days after the bidder has received the contract for execution. Failure to do so shall be just cause for forfeiture of the proposal guaranty. The executed contract documents shall be delivered to the following address:

Attention: Gloria Aguilar City of Turlock, Engineering Division 156 S Broadway, Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380

3.02 PRE-AWARD PROTEST PROCEDURES:

Failure to strictly comply with the protest procedures delineated below with respect to timeliness or protest contents will render a protest untimely and/or inadequate and will result in rejection thereof by the City. Only responsive bidders may submit a pre-award protest for consideration. Written protests may be either hand delivered or sent by mail. In the case of hand delivery, the protest must be received

no later than five (5) calendar days after the bid opening. In case of mail, the written protest must be postmarked no later than five (5) calendar days after the bid opening. Pre-award protests shall be delivered to the following address:

Attention: Gloria Aguilar City of Turlock Engineering Division 156 S Broadway Suite 150 Turlock, CA 95380

The pre-award protest shall include all of the following: the name of the protester, City project number, a detailed description of the specific grounds for protest, any supporting documentation, and the specific ruling or relief requested. The City will respond to the pre-award protest and will provide a written determination within ten (10) working days after receiving the pre-award protest.

SECTION 4 START OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND DELAY DAMAGES

4.01 NOTICE TO PROCEED:

The Notice to Proceed is defined as a letter issued by the City to the Contractor indicating that the Work may begin at the designated site and outlines the anticipated construction start and end dates. The Notice to Proceed is issued after award of the Contract by the City Council and after the Contractor has provided all bonds, insurance documentation, and any other information required by the project specifications prior to beginning the Work. At no time shall construction begin prior to the issuance of the Notice to Proceed. Any work performed prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed shall be done at the Contractor's own risk.

Attention is directed to Section 5, "Time For Performance," of the Contract.

Attention is directed to Section 5(d), "Delay Damages," of the Contract.

4.02 PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING:

A pre-construction meeting will be held between Contractor and City prior to the beginning of construction. The exact time and place of this conference will be determined by City after award of the construction contract. Contractor's superintendent, Contractor's project manager(s), City's project manager, City's public works inspector, major subcontractors and others involved in performance of the Work, are required to be present.

The purpose of the meeting is to establish a working understanding between parties and to discuss the construction schedule, review the process for the review of submittals, RFIs, Change Order Requests, applications for payment, and other subjects pertinent to execution of the Work.

4.03 COPIES OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

At the request of the Contractor, City shall furnish up to five (5) hard copies of the project plans and specifications. Contractor may produce additional copies as needed at Contractor's expense.

4.04 STAGING OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT:

Contractor shall coordinate, arrange, and pay for leasing of area(s) for the staging materials and equipment, as necessary. Any areas utilized for staging shall be included in the Contractor's Erosion and Sediment Control Plan or Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). Contractor shall take preconstruction photos of staging area(s) to use of the area and shall restore the areas to pre-construction conditions prior to completion.

Contractor may contact City personnel to request if there is City-owned land in the vicinity of the project available for staging. The City may grant access to City-owned land for staging, but shall not be obligated to do so. Prior to use of City property for staging purposes, Contractor and City shall execute a License Agreement in a form acceptable to the City which shall include provisions for indemnification and required insurance coverages. Contractor is advised that execution of a License Agreement will require time. Contractor is encouraged to begin the process early to avoid delay. City's processing time for the License Agreement shall not be justification for an increase in contract time.

4.05 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION:

Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the project when the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract so that the intended purpose of the project has been achieved. Substantial Completion shall include all Work for the Project, except the following:

- Completion of minor punch list items that do not prohibit use of the completed facility for its intended use and purpose
- Delivery of Operations and Maintenance manuals
- Completion of As-built drawings

When the Contractor considers the project to be substantially complete, the Contractor shall submit a request for Engineer's concurrence in writing and shall attach a list of incomplete work that it considers is minor in nature and does not prohibit the use of the completed facility for its intended use and purpose. Upon receipt of the Contractor's request and list of items, the Engineer will inspect and determine whether the project is substantially complete within three (3) working days of the request. If the inspection yields that the project is not sufficiently complete, the Engineer will notify the Contractor of those items in need of completion or correction before the attainment of Substantial Completion. Upon completion of the remaining items, Contractor shall submit another request for inspection by the Engineer. When Engineer is satisfied that the work is substantially complete, a written notice of Substantial Completion shall be transmitted by Engineer to Contractor within 24 hours of the successful inspection and shall include a list of all items of work that must be completed by Contractor prior to attainment of Final Completion (final punch list). This final punch list is provided for Contractor's convenience only. Engineer reserves the right to identify and add to the final punch list as new items may be identified as outstanding and in need of the Contractor's attention.

WARRANTY

The Contractor shall guarantee the work in general for a period of one (1) year beginning on the date Substantial Completion is attained. The Contractor shall not be required to perform any further work thereon beyond the said one year, except upon such items noted otherwise in the project plans, Special Provisions, or Technical Specifications.

4.06 FINAL COMPLETION:

Final Completion is the stage in the progress of the project when all work is complete in accordance with the Contract. Contractor shall inform Engineer when, in the opinion of the Contractor, all work has been complete as per the requirements of the Contract. The Engineer shall promptly inspect the work and make a determination as to whether all work of the project has been completed. Should any items of work be incomplete, the Engineer shall provide a written list of outstanding items to the Contractor for completion. Contractor shall address any remaining items and then request a determination be made by the Engineer. When Engineer is satisfied that the work is complete, a written notice of Final Completion shall be transmitted by Engineer to Contractor and contract working days shall cease to be counted on the project.

SECTION 5 GENERAL

5.01 INTERNET BASED CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:

The Engineer and Contractor shall utilize Virtual Project Manager (VPM; www.new.virtual-pm.com), for submission of all construction documents for the duration of the construction contract and shall utilize VPM for project correspondence to the maximum extent possible. VPM is an online electronic project management system used to create, share, and review construction management documentation. The joint use of this system is to facilitate electronic exchange of information, automation of key processes, electronic notification of project activity, and overall management of contract documentation between City and Contractor. VPM shall be the primary means of project document submission and management.

VPM access is provided to the Contractor at no cost to the Contractor. The Contractor shall use computer hardware and software that meets the requirements of the VPM system. Upgrading of the Contractor's computer systems will not be justification for a cost or time modification to the Contract. The Contractor shall ensure its own connectivity to VPM by providing their own internet service and provide staff knowledgeable in the use of computers.

The Engineer will establish the Contractor's access to VPM by enabling access and assigning user profiles to Contractor's personnel. Contractor may request that access be granted to subcontractors, suppliers, or consultants, though access to these groups will be limited to read-only permissions. All communication to the Engineer shall be made directly through the Contractor. All authorized personnel shall have an individual user profile; no joint-use or shared user profiles will be allowed. Each user profile shall be assigned to a user group and have specific permission settings and privileges based on the user's need within VPM. The Contractor shall be responsible for the validity of the information entered by the Contractor into VPM.

Contractor will submit attachments within VPM in formats acceptable to the Engineer, such as PDF files, Microsoft Office files, and picture files (JPG, TIFF, BMP, JPEG, etc.). PDF documents shall be created through electronic conversion prior to uploading, rather than optically scanned, whenever possible.

Contractor shall upload relevant documents for review and approval under the corresponding module within VPM (submittal, RFI, etc.). Each document submittal shall have a unique title and description that references the item and the section number from the specifications.

Engineer shall provide training to the Contractor in the basic use of the VPM system, as requested by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall create a RFI upon recognition of any event or question of fact arising from the contract work. The Engineer will respond to a RFI submitted by the Contractor within seven (7) calendar days, not including legal holidays.

Inspector's daily logs shall be used by the City to document the activities of the work, any correspondence or direction given in the field, safety concerns and general comments about the project. The weekly statement of working days report (WSWD) will be generated by VPM and approved by the City. The WSWD shows the working days and non-working days charged for the reporting week, any time adjustments, a work completion date with the remaining working days left in the contract and the controlling activities for the week. The Contractor will be allowed 15 days to protest in writing the correctness of the statement.

5.02 BUSINESS LICENSE:

Contractor shall obtain a City of Turlock business license prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed. The cost of the business license is an up-front fee of eighty-four dollars (\$84) <u>plus</u> fifty cents per thousand dollars in revenue received for work performed on the project, made payable on a semi-annual basis. Business Licenses are obtained through the Finance Division at Turlock City Hall, 156 S. Broadway, Suite 114. Additional information can be found on the City's website at http://ci.turlock.ca.us/doingbusinessinturlock/businesslicenses/newbusinesslicense.asp.

Full compensation for obtaining a business license as specified above shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract bid items and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.03 PROGRESS SCHEDULE:

Contractor shall furnish City with a Critical Path Method progress schedule. The progress schedule shall show the construction activities extending for the duration of the working days. Any deviation from the outline must be approved by Engineer. Contractor shall not be allowed to start construction activities until the progress schedule is accepted by Engineer.

5.04 PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:

The Contractor shall notify adjacent property owners, residents, and/or tenants when the execution of work may affect their everyday activities.

Any time the Contractor is acting on behalf of the City to perform work, the communication material between the Contractor and the public shall adhere to these Special Provisions and is subject to review and approval by the City. All communication materials shall be in English and Spanish.

Work Notice

Provide notice to affected property owners in advance of work. Notice is required for any work within an easement, within the City's right-of-way, outside of street, etc. Contractor shall notify the resident by door knocking and leaving a flier. Notices shall be received by the affected properties no less than two (2) and no more than seven (7) calendar days prior to starting the work.

Denial of Access

Provide notice for when it is necessary to temporarily deny access to public parking, residential property, or commercial property. Notify residents, businesses, and local agencies at least 24 hours before starting activities. The type of notification shall be a written communication prepared and distributed by the Contractor. The written communication shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

- Describe the work to be performed
- Detail streets and limits of activities
- Indicate dates and work hours
- Be authorized by the City

Attention is directed to Section 12.02, "Traffic Management Plan," of these Special Provisions.

Utility Service Interruption

Provide notice for when any City's utility service connection must be interrupted. The type of notification shall be a written communication prepared and distributed by the Contractor. The written communication shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

- The type of service (e.g. water or sewer) that will be interrupted
- The date and length of time service will be interrupted
- Contractor's Name and Contact Information

Notices shall be received by the affected properties no less than two (2) and no more than seven (7) calendar days prior to the work.

5.05 PERMITS:

Contractor is required to obtain the following permits.

Permit:	Agency /	Required for:	Fee	Notes
	Division:			
Building Permit	City of Turlock	Room renovation	\$0 to	Contractor shall pull the
_			contractor.	Building Permit from the
				City's Building Division.

5.06 SUBMITTALS:

General

Before making submittals, Contractor shall ensure that products and materials will be available in the quantities and in the time required by the Contract and the approved outline of construction activity. Each submittal shall clearly identify, by highlighting, arrows or other defined and permanent mark, the products and materials proposed for use.

All Submittals shall be made to Engineer by Contractor, including those generated by subcontractors and suppliers. Contractor shall carefully review all subcontractor and supplier submittals before submitting to Engineer for review. Submittals received from sources other than

Contractor's office shall be returned without action. If a submittal contains extraneous information, unmarked options or is incomplete, it will be returned to Contractor for correction and require re-submittal.

Submission

Submittals shall be made electronically in accordance with the Section 5.01 "Internet Based Construction Management System," of these special provisions.

Each submittal shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

1. Title page including the following information:

Capital Project No.

Name of Contractor

Name of subcontractor (if applicable)

Description of item

Item Number on Bid Schedule

Contractor's initials and date indicating approval of item for submittal to Engineer

- 2. The brochure, product data sheet or catalog cut sheet. For all Product Data and Manufacturer's Instructions, excise or cross out non-applicable information and clearly mark applicable information with citations to and terminology consistent with Contract Documents.
- 3. Submittals that involve engineering computations or original design work shall show the name, the California State registration number, seal, and signature of the Professional Engineer certifying that such computations or design work are correct and in conformance with applicable standards, codes and accepted engineering practices.
- 4. For product samples, Contractor shall submit two (2) representative samples, one of which may be retained for the duration of the project or indefinitely at the discretion of Engineer. Although a reasonable attempt will be made to maintain the samples in good condition, neither City nor its representative will be responsible for the condition of the samples if returned to Contractor.
- 5. For material samples, unless a specific quantity is called for in the contract documents, Contractor shall submit a representative sample of the material, which may be retained for the duration of the project or indefinitely at the discretion of Engineer.
- 6. Certificates of compliance shall be submitted by Contractor to Engineer for those materials and products for which no sample and test results are specified. Certificates of compliance shall include the following information:
 - Statement that the product complies with the respective contract specifications.

- Producer's name and address, product trade name and catalog number (if applicable), place of product origin, quantity of product to be furnished, and related contract plans and specification section numbers.
- A certified copy of test results pertaining to the product from a certified independent testing laboratory. At the option of Engineer certified test results shall be signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the state of California.
- Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for all materials used or stored on the site that possess a MSDS, including materials used by Contractor for maintenance of equipment.

Review

Submittals will be processed by Engineer within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt, not including legal holidays. When a submittal cannot be returned within that period, the Engineer will, within a reasonable time after receipt of the submittal, give notice of the date by which that submittal will be returned. Submittal shall receive one of four review actions:

- 1. No Exceptions Taken The submittal is approved without comments.
- 2. Supply as Noted / Make Corrections Noted The submittal is approved, provided that the Contractor addresses the included comments.
- 3. Resubmit The information provided with the submittal does not meet project requirements, however, Engineer has commented on some missing items that, if provided, may meet project requirements. Contractor shall resubmit the same product and provide additional information per the Engineer's comments.
- 4. Rejected The submitted product cannot meet project requirements and is rejected. Contractor shall provide a separate product that meets project requirements as a resubmittal.

Engineer will review submittals for general conformance with the Contract Documents. The work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of the responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Engineer's approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Engineer in writing of such deviation at the time of submittal as part of a cover letter to the submittal itself, and as a written communication separate from the submittal cover letter, and (1) the Engineer has given written approval to the specific deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Engineer's approval thereof. The Engineer's review does not extend to accuracy of dimensions, quantities, or performance of equipment and systems designed by the Contractor, or means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. Unless specifically authorized to do so by

Engineer, Contractor shall not procure, manufacture, or fabricate any part of the contract work until submittals related to said contract work have been favorably reviewed by Engineer.

"Or Equal" Items

Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the specification or description is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or equal" item or no substitution is permitted, other items of material or equipment or material or equipment of other Suppliers may be submitted to for review under the circumstances described below.

- 1. "Or Equal" Items: If in the Engineer's discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, it may be considered by Engineer as an "or-equal" item, in which case review and approval of the proposed item may be accomplished. A proposed item of material or equipment will be considered functionally equal to a named item if:
 - a. In the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that: (i) it is at least equal in quality, durability, appearance, strength, and design characteristics; (ii) it will reliably perform at least equally well the function of the named item, and;
 - b. Contractor certifies that: (i) there is no increase in cost to the City; and (ii) it will conform substantially, even with deviations, to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.

5.07 CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURES:

The contract price and contract time may only be changed by an executed Contract Change Order. A Contract Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Owner, authorized by the City, stating agreement of the following:

- 1. The change in the Work;
- 2. The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Price; and
- 3. The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

When a change in the work is contemplated by the Engineer, a Construction Change Directive may be issued by the Engineer. A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Engineer directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time, or both, in a Contract Change Order. The Engineer may, by Construction Change Directive and without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Price and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly thereafter according to the terms of the Agreement.

A Change Order Request is a document created by the Contractor which notifies the Engineer of changes in scope, changed conditions, errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the contract documents which may or may not require an adjustment in the Contract Price and/or Contract Time.

Upon issuance of either a Construction Change Directive by the Engineer or a Change Order Request by the Contractor, the Contractor shall promptly prepare documentation proposing a contract cost and/or time adjustment for review by the Engineer for the purposes of arriving at a mutually agreeable lump sum. Contractor shall submit backup information for costs of labor, equipment, material, and agreeable markups. Backup information shall contain sufficient detail to allow a thorough review. The Engineer will review backup documentation and issue a response to the Contractor as to agreement or disagreement with proposed adjustments to contract price and/or time. Contractor shall not proceed with the change in the Work involved until the proposed cost and time adjustment is acceptable to the Engineer. If attempts to arrive at a mutually agreeable lump sum amount fail, the Engineer may direct that the work proceeds on the basis of force account in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

When the Engineer and Contractor agree with the adjustments in the Contract Price and/or Contract Time, the Engineer will prepare the change order. The City Engineer or the Director of Municipal Services may approve change orders up to 50% of the approved contingency for the project. The City Manager may approve change orders up to 100% of the approved contingency for the project. Change orders exceeding the contingency balance must be approved by the City Council.

5.08 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIM:

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.43 "Potential Claims and Dispute Resolution," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

5.09 LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION:

Attention is directed to the following Notice that is required by Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2, California Code of Regulations.

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR NONDISCRIMINATION PROGRAM (GOV. CODE, SECTION 12990)

Your attention is called to the "Nondiscrimination Clause", set forth in Section 7 1.01A(4), "Labor Nondiscrimination," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications, which is applicable to all nonexempt state contracts and subcontracts, and to the "Standard California Nondiscrimination Construction Contract Specifications" set forth therein. The Specifications are applicable to all nonexempt state construction contracts and subcontracts of \$5,000 or more.

5.10 PREVAILING WAGE:

Attention is directed to Section 7-1.02K "Labor Code," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications, however certified payroll is not submitted to Caltrans for this project. Contractor shall submit certified payroll records both to the DIR and to the Engineer on a weekly basis. Contractor may submit certified payroll records to the Engineer via mail, email, or uploaded to VPM.

State Prevailing Wage Rates

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the General Prevailing Wage Rates in the County Stanislaus in which the work is to be done have been determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations. These wages are set forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, available at 156 S. Broadway St, Turlock, CA 95380 and available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD. Changes, if any, to the general prevailing wage rates, will be available at the same location. Future effective General Prevailing Wage Rates, that have been predetermined and are on file with the California Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in the General Prevailing Wage Rates.

5.11 SUBCONTRACTING:

No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor of their responsibility for a subcontractor's work.

If the Contractor violates Pub Cont Code § 4100 et seq., the City may exercise the remedies provided under Pub Cont Code § 4110. The City may refer the violation to the Contractors State License Board as provided under Pub Cont Code § 4111.

Each subcontract must comply with the contract.

Each subcontractor must have an active and valid State Contractor's License with a classification appropriate for the work to be performed (Bus & Prof Code, § 7000 et seq.).

Do not use a debarred contractor; a current list of debarred contractors is available at the Department of Industrial Relations' Web site.

Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and not again use a subcontractor who fails to prosecute the work satisfactorily.

5.12 PAYMENTS:

Attention is directed to Section 8, "Compensation," of the Contract.

At the end of each month the Contractor shall submit a proposed progress invoice. The invoice shall delineate each bid item, the amount of work performed for the invoice period (previous month) and the total amount of work performed to date. A sample invoice with all of the required items will be given to the Contractor at the pre-construction meeting.

The Engineer will review the progress invoice and after any changes the Engineer makes, will issue an official invoice for the Contractor to sign. The Contractor shall sign the official invoice and return to the Engineer. After the Engineer receives the signed, official invoice, the progress payment will be processed.

Retention in the amount of 5% of the progress payment amount shall be held from all progress payments. Retention will be released 35 days after the Notice of Completion has been filed, insofar as no stop notices were filed.

5.13 **GUARANTY:**

Attention is directed to Section 9-4, "Guaranty," of the City of Turlock Standard Specifications.

5.14 PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS:

A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor not later than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to subcontractors. The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing. Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanction and other remedies of that section. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

5.15 PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS:

The agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the agency of the contract work and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The prime contractor or subcontractor shall return all monies withheld in retention from all subcontractors within seven (7) days for construction contracts and fifteen (15) days for consultant contracts after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the agency. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10262 of the California Public Contract Code for construction contracts, and Section 3321 of the California Civil Code for consultant contracts. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor; deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

5.16 PUBLIC SAFETY:

In addition to any other measures taken by Contractor pursuant to the provisions of the Standard Specifications and the General Conditions, Contractor shall install temporary precast concrete barrier rail between any lane carrying public traffic and any excavation, obstacle or storage area when the following conditions exist:

Excavations: Any excavation, the near edge of which is 12 feet or less from the edge of the lane, except;

- (a) Excavations covered with sheet steel or concrete covers of adequate thickness to prevent accidental entry by traffic or the public.
- (b) Excavations less than one foot deep.

- (c) Trenches less than one foot wide for irrigation pipe or electrical conduit or excavations less than one foot in diameter.
- (d) Excavations parallel to the lane for the purpose of pavement widening or reconstruction.
- (e) Excavations in side slopes where the slope is steeper than 4:1.
- (f) Excavations protected by existing barrier or railing.

At the end of each working day, if a difference of 0.50 feet exists between the elevation of the existing pavement and the elevation of any excavation within 2 feet of the traveled way, material shall be placed and compacted against the vertical cuts adjacent to the traveled way. During excavation operations, native material may be used for this purpose, however, once the placing of the structural section commences, structural material shall be used. The material shall be placed to the level of the elevation of the top of the existing pavement and tapered at a slope of 4:1 or flatter to the bottom of the excavation. Treated base shall not be used for the taper. Full compensation for placing the material on a 4:1 slope, regardless of the number of times it is required, and subsequent removing or reshaping of the material to the lines and grades shown on the plans shall be considered as included in the cost for other contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

Personal vehicles of Contractor's employees shall not be parked on the traveled way or shoulders, including any section closed to public traffic. Whenever vehicles or equipment are parked on the shoulder within 6 feet of a traffic lane, the shoulder area shall be closed with traffic cones or portable delineators placed on a taper in advance of the parked vehicles or equipment and along the edge of the pavement at 25-foot intervals to a point not less than 25 feet past the last vehicle or piece of equipment.

A minimum of one paved traffic lane, not less than 12 feet wide, shall be open for use by public traffic in each direction of travel. The full width of the traveled way shall be open for use by public traffic on Saturdays, Sundays and designated legal holidays, after 4:00 p.m. on Fridays and the day preceding designated legal holidays and when construction operations are not actively in progress.

5.17 REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES:

Contractor shall refer to the asbestos survey report for this project prepared by Bovee Environmental Management, Inc dated September 13, 2024. The report is available as an appendix to these Special Provisions.

The contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify the local public entity, in writing, of any:

- 1. Material that the contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law.
- Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated by information about the site made available to bidders prior to the deadline for submitting bids.

Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the contract.

Upon notification of any of the above, the City shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or increase in the contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the work, a change order shall be issued to modify the contract scope.

In the event that a dispute arises between the City and Contractor whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, the contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by the contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the contract. The contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by contract or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties.

When the presence of asbestos or hazardous substances are not shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications and the Contractor encounters materials which the Contractor reasonably believes to be asbestos or a hazardous substance as defined in Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, and the asbestos or hazardous substance has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor may continue work in unaffected areas reasonably believed to be safe. The Contractor shall immediately cease work in the affected area and report the condition to the Engineer in writing.

In conformance with Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, removal of asbestos or hazardous substances including exploratory work to identify and determine the extent of the asbestos or hazardous substance will be performed by separate contract.

If delay of work in the area delays the current controlling operation, the delay will be considered a right of way delay and the Contractor will be compensated for the delay in conformance with the provisions in Section 8 1.07, "Delays," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.

5.18 WORKING HOURS:

Contractor's working hours shall be between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding legal holidays.

Contractor shall notify Engineer 48 hours prior to beginning work.

Contractor shall not work outside the above-mentioned working hours without prior written consent of Engineer.

Designated legal holidays are: January 1st, the third Monday in January, the third Monday in February, the last Monday in May, June 19th, July 4th, the first Monday in September, November 11th, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving, and December 25th. When a designated legal holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be a designated legal holiday. When a designated legal holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be a designated legal holiday.

Should the Contractor desire to work on a Saturday, Sunday or Legal Holiday, the Contractor shall request approval of the Engineer. The Engineer may reject the request with or without cause. Should approval be granted, the Contractor shall reimburse the City of Turlock the premium portion of cost of engineering, inspection, testing, superintendent, and/or other overhead expenses due to overtime which are directly chargeable to the contract. Should such work be undertaken at the request of the City, reimbursement will not be required.

5.19 SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS:

Sound control shall be in accordance with Section 7 1.01I, "Sound Control Requirements," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

The noise level from Contractor's operations, between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., shall not exceed 86 dba at a distance of 50 feet. This requirement in no way relieves Contractor from responsibility for complying with local ordinances regulating noise level.

Said noise level requirements shall apply to all equipment on the job or related to the job, including but not limited to trucks, transit mixers or transient equipment that may or may not be owned by Contractor. The use of loud sound signals shall be avoided in favor of light warnings except those required by safety law for the protection of personnel.

Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.20 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT REQUIREMENTS:

Contractor shall contact Underground Service Alert of Northern California at least 48 hours in advance of any construction activity, will or could damage or affect any underground utility or subsurface improvement, and obtain an inquiry identification number. Contractor shall notify Underground Service Alert in the event of change in the project limits or change in original work previously shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications. Contractor shall not commence construction prior to City Inspector receiving City's notice from USA North regarding this construction activity.

5.21 PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY:

The work performed in connection with various existing facilities shall be in accordance with Section 7-8, "Preservation of Property," of the City of Turlock Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

Due care shall be exercised to avoid injury or damage to existing improvements or facilities, utility facilities, adjacent property, and roadside trees, shrubs and other plants that are to remain in place.

Roadside trees, shrubs and other plants that are not to be removed and pole lines, fences, signs, markers and monuments, buildings and structures, conduits, pipelines under or above aground, sewer and water lines, sprinkler systems above or below ground, all roadway facilities, and any other improvements or facilities within or adjacent to the right-of-way shall be protected from injury or damage, and if ordered by Engineer, Contractor shall provide and install suitable safeguards, approved by Engineer, to protect such objects from injury or damage. If such objects are injured or damaged by reason of Contractor's operations they shall be replaced or restored at Contractor's expense. The facilities shall be replaced or

restored to a condition as good or better as when Contractor entered upon the work, or as good as required by the specifications accompanying the contract, if any such objects are a part of the work being performed under the contract. Engineer may make or cause to be made such temporary repairs as necessary to restore to service any damaged facility. The cost of such repairs shall be borne by Contractor and may be deducted from any moneys due or to become due to Contractor under the contract.

The fact that any underground facility is not shown upon the plans shall not relieve Contractor of his responsibility under the Section "Existing Utilities and Facilities", of these provisions. It shall be Contractor's responsibility, pursuant thereto, to ascertain the location of such underground improvements or facilities that may be subject to damage by reason of construction operations.

Full compensation for furnishing all labor materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in protecting or repairing property as specified above, shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.22 DUST CONTROL:

Dust Control shall conform to the provisions in Section 10, "Dust Control", of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions.

Full compensation for Dust Control will be considered as included in the various contract items of work requiring Dust Control, as determined by Engineer, and no separate payment will be made therefor.

5.23 USE OF HYDRANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES:

City will permit the use of a hydrant for construction purposes provided that the following are abided by:

- 1. A spanner wrench shall be the only type of wrench used on fire hydrants.
- 2. Contractor shall be liable for the damages to or loss of all hydrants and associated water lines and equipment which result from the use of this equipment.
- 3. Water shall only be used within City limits.
- 4. The vehicle must be approved by Engineer for approved backflow device.
- 5. Contractor shall pay a deposit on a water meter provided by the City. After the project ended the Contractor shall return the meter to the City for the release of the deposit.

Contractor shall obtain a no-fee monthly hydrant use permit for use of construction water for this project from the City of Turlock Municipal Services Department located at 156 S. Broadway Suite 270, Turlock, California 95380, ph:209-668-5590.

Use of city hydrants does not exempt Contractor from providing a water truck where hydrants cannot be utilized due to unsafe working conditions as deemed by Engineer.

5.24 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION POWER:

If temporary construction power is determined to be needed by the Contractor to perform the work, Contractor shall arrange and pay for all temporary electric power. The cost of temporary power shall be considered as included in the various contract bid items and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

5.25 SALVAGE MATERIALS:

If Contractor is directed to salvage materials in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall arrange for delivery of said item(s) to the City of Turlock Corporation Yard located at 701 S. Walnut Road, unless noted otherwise. Contractor shall coordinate delivery of salvaged materials through the public works inspector.

5.26 TESTING:

Unless otherwise noted, City of Turlock will supply all acceptance testing. Coordination of said testing is the responsibility of Contractor through the project's inspector. The Contractor shall provide at least 24 hours' notice to the Engineer in advance of needing acceptance testing. If the Contractor request testing and the Contractor is not ready for the testing to occur, the Contractor shall be back charged the cover the cost of the testing firm.

At sites chosen by the project inspector, City's testing laboratory will conduct all tests. Contractor shall supply any necessary equipment and or labor required to obtain all samples for the completion of the testing process.

City of Turlock shall compensate the testing laboratory for all initial tests. Secondary and all other followup tests required due to failure of initial testing shall be reimbursed to City of Turlock based on the following schedule:

Water sample test: \$300.00 Per Test Compaction test: \$100.00 Per Test

5.27 AS-BUILTS:

When the job is complete, Contractor shall provide City with as-built drawings. These as-built drawings shall show any and all differences (revisions, additions, etc.) between the signed improvement plans and the installed improvements. The Contractor shall identify all utilities that are located in the field. The as-builts will consist of redlined signed improvement plans. The Notice of Completion will not be issued until acceptable as-builts have been received by the Engineer.

SECTION 6 (BLANK)

SECTION 7 (BLANK)

SECTION 8 (BLANK)

SECTION 9 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The work consists, in general of interior alteration to portion of existing fire station, enlarging existing SCBA room to accommodate new compressor equipment, electrical and mechanical modifications to accommodate new compressor equipment: and other associated work.

The work includes all necessary labor, materials, tools, equipment and any incidentals needed to perform the improvements as shown on the contract plans.

Bid Alternate #1

The bid alternate considered with the proposal is a demolishing portion of an existing wall to accommodate a new door opening and other associated work.

Bid Alternate #2

The bid alternate considered with the proposal is to provide and install a new mini-split system per the Mechanical Plans and other associated work.

SECTION 10 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

10.01 MOBILIZATION & DEMOBILIZATION

Mobilization is intended to compensate the Contractor for operations including, but not limited to, those necessary for the movement of personal, equipment, supplies and incidentals to / from the project site; for the payment of premium cost and insurance for the project; for any necessary costs of acquisition of equipment, including purchase and mobilization expense; and for any other work and operations which must be performed or costs that must be incurred incident to the initiation of meaningful work at the site and for which payment is not otherwise provided in the contract.

- (1) When 5 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 50 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is less, may be paid.
- (2) When 10 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 75 percent of the amount bid for mobilization or 7.5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is less, may be paid.
- (3) When 20 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 95 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 9.5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is less, may be paid.
- (4) When 50 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 100 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 10 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is less, may be paid.
- (5) Upon completion of all work on the project, payment of any amount bid for mobilization in excess of 10 percent of the original contract amount will be paid.

10.02 REMOVE EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS

Doors, door frames, flooring and all other items designated on the plans to be removed or must be removed in order to install the improvements as shown on the plans, shall be removed and disposed of outside the highway right of way in accordance with the provisions in Section 7-10 of the Standard Specifications.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for removing existing improvements shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in removing the existing improvements as shown on the plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.03 SITE WORK:

Includes all work associated with the exterior of the facility. Detectable warning surfaces, restriping, installation of accessible parking stall signs, and other associated work. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for site work shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in site work as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.04 INTERIOR ROOM ALTERATIONS:

Includes all work associated with installation of doors, door frames, hardware, ceiling, new wall base, tactile and photo-luminescent signs, water closet, louvers, and other items for the interior finish of the SCBA room. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for interior room alterations shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in interior room alterations as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.05 PATCHWORK:

Includes all work associated with the patch work for concrete slab and ceramic tile base. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for patchwork shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in patchwork as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.06 RESTROOM ALTERATIONS:

Includes all work associated with the restroom. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for restroom alterations shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in restroom alterations as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.07 ELECTRICAL:

Includes all work associated with the installation or modification of electrical items. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for electrical light fixtures shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in electrical work as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.08 MECHANICAL:

Includes all work associated with the installation or modification of the mechanical related work. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for Mechanical shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in Mechanical work as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.09 STRUCTURAL:

Includes all work associated with the installation or modification of the structural related work specifically in the base bid of this Project. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for Structural shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in Structural work as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.10 BID ALTERNATE 1 - EXTERIOR DOUBLE DOORS:

Includes all work associated with the Bid Alternate 1. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for exterior double doors shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in the bid alternate of exterior double doors as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.11 BID ALTERNATE 2 – NEW MINI SPLIT SYSTEM:

Includes all work associated with the Bid Alternate 2. Refer to Plans.

PAYMENT:

The lump sum price paid for new mini split system shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in the bid alternate of a new mini split system as shown on the Plans, specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as required to install proposed improvements, and as directed by Engineer.

10.12 FINAL CLEANUP:

Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove all equipment, debris, and shall leave the site in a neat clean condition to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall clean the area of all

construction related materials and sweep the entire project area including sidewalk and gutter thoroughly. All construction signs, cones, barricades, and conflicting markings shall be removed. At the request of the Contractor, a final punchlist will be provided. After all items of the punchlist have been completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Engineer will issue substantial completion. The accrual of working days will cease after substantial completion has been issued.

SECTION 11 (BLANK)

SECTION 12 (BLANK)

SECTION 13 (BLANK)

APPENDIX – ASBESTOS SURVEY REPORT



ASBESTOS INSPECTION REPORT

SEPTEMBER 13, 2024

BEM PROJECT NO. 24-67910

Site

Fire Station 31 540 East Marshall Street Turlock, CA 95380

Prepared For

Mr. Oscar Molina City of Turlock 156 South Broadway, Suite #150 Turlock, CA 95380

Prepared By

BOVEE ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, INC.

1643 3rd Street, Escalon, CA 95320

Escalon 209-847-3800 • Fresno 559-264-3800 • Bakersfield 661-246-2110 • Sacramento 916-564-3838



September 13, 2024

Mr. Oscar Molina City of Turlock 156 South Broadway, Suite #150 Turlock, CA 95380

Mr. Molina:

Bovee Environmental Management, Inc. (BEM) is pleased to provide this Asbestos Survey Report regarding our asbestos inspection services at the Project Site summarized below.

I. PROJECT SUMMARY TABLE

PROJECT SITE NAME	PROJECT SITE LOCATION	PROJECT SITE NOTE		
Fire Station 31	540 East Marshall Street, Turlock, CA 95380	Renovation		

INSPECTION TYPE	INSPECTED AREAS	INSPECTION DATE		
Commercial Asbestos Survey	SBCA Room, Shop Room & Exterior	September 12, 2024		

II. INSPECTION SUMMARY

Samples of building materials considered to be *suspect asbestos containing materials** were identified and collected from the inspected renovation areas referenced above to determine their asbestos content. Samples collected from specific areas for the purpose of renovation activities are determined by the client. There maybe areas within the Subject Site that were not inspected and may contain additional suspect asbestos containing materials that were not sampled. Through proper chain-of-custody the collected samples are sent to Central Valley Laboratories for polarized light microscopy (PLM) analysis. A summary of all materials sampled and corresponding analytical results are listed below. Detailed information regarding sample number, actual sample location and analytical methods can be reviewed in attachments A and B.

SAMPLE COLLECTION SUMMARY

*See definitions on page 2.

#	MATERIAL SAMPLED	MATERIAL LOCATION	ASBESTOS	CATEGORY	SQ.FT.
67910-01	Ceramic Tile Grout	Base Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-02	Ceramic Tile Cement	Base Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-03	Surface Texture	Walls Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-04	Surface Texture	Walls Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-05	Surface Texture	Walls Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-06	Sheetrock/Joint Compound	Walls Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-07	Sheetrock/Joint Compound	Walls Throughout	None Detected	-	-
67910-08	Stucco	Exterior; Walls	None Detected	-	-
67910-09	Vapor Barrier Paper	Exterior; Wall Cavities	None Detected	-	-

III. DEFINITIONS (*)

<u>Suspect Asbestos Containing Material (ACM)</u> - Local air quality management districts consider a material that is not wood, metal or glass, to be a suspect ACM. All suspect ACMs are assumed to contain asbestos until laboratory analysis confirms that a material has no asbestos content.

<u>Category</u> – ACM's are classified as either "friable", material that <u>can</u> be easily crushed or pulverized by normal hand pressure or as "non-friable", material that <u>cannot</u> be easily crushed or pulverized by normal hand pressure. Friable ACMs are considered a Regulated Asbestos Containing Material (RACM) requiring Class I work practices and engineering controls. Non-friable ACMs are considered either Category I or Category II Asbestos Containing Material requiring Class II work practices and engineering controls.

<u>Trace</u> - Analytical result that is equal to or less than 1.0 percent asbestos by weight, but greater than 0.1 percent. Materials with a trace amount of asbestos have to be removed as asbestos containing construction material (ACCM) according to Cal-OSHA, but can be disposed as non-ACM upon point count analyses according to federal and state EPA regulations.

<u>Homogeneous</u> – Multiple samples collected of a suspect material that is similar in general appearance and from areas that appear to have been constructed at the same time are considered homogeneous. If multiple samples are collected from a similar material within a homogeneous area and only one of the multiple samples is found to contain asbestos, regulations mandate that the entirety of that material with the homogeneous area must be considered an ACM.

<u>VFT</u> – Vinyl Floor Tile <u>TBD</u> – To be determined

IV. ASBESTOS REGULATORY STANDARDS

California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal-OSHA)

- •Friable and Non-Friable ACCMs containing more than 0.1 percent asbestos by weight are regulated.
- •Enforces regulations pertaining to workers performing ACCM removal and workers in close proximity.
- •Contractors who disturb more than 100 square feet or 160 lineal feet of ACCM must be registered by the contractor's state license board as an asbestos removal contractor.
- •Contractors who disturb <u>any amount</u> of ACCM must ensure employee protection by providing accredited training, medical examinations, personal protective equipment and a negative exposure assessment.

United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

- •Friable and Non-Friable ACMs containing more than 1.0 percent asbestos by weight are regulated.
- •Enforces regulations pertaining to protecting the environment, not workers.
- •Abatement Contractors who disturb more than 160 square feet or 260 linear feet of ACM must comply with the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants Asbestos Regulations (40 CFR 61, Subpart M) and all state and federal requirements regarding asbestos.

Local Air Quality Control Districts

- •Friable and Non-Friable ACM's containing more than 1.0 percent asbestos by weight are regulated.
- •Enforces regulations pertaining to local air quality; "No Visible Air Emissions".
- •Require an asbestos survey prior to renovation or demolition.
- •Abatement Contractors who disturb more than 160 square feet or 260 linear feet of ACM must comply with the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants Asbestos Regulations (40 CFR 61, Subpart M).

V. RECOMMENDATIONS

BEM recommends compliance with all federal, state and local regulations concerning asbestos.

VI. WARRANTY

Samples of suspect asbestos containing building materials, which could be disturbed during construction activities, are collected by BEM. Site inspections and sample collection methodologies are performed to meet regulatory standards and industry protocols. BEM warrants that the findings contained herein have been promulgated in general accordance with accepted professional practices at the time of its preparation as applied by professionals in the community. There is a possibility that conditions may exist in which suspect ACM's could not be identified within the scope of the survey or were not apparent or accessible during the site visit. All scheduled work should cease and additional samples should be collected if unidentified suspect ACM's are discovered during construction activities. If roofing materials were collected for this survey, BEM is not responsible for damages caused by sampling locations or roofing warranty voids with the manufacturer.

If quantities of asbestos containing materials are stated in this report, they are supplied for budgetary and regulatory notification purposes only. They should not be relied on for abatement bidding purposes.

VII. DISCLAIMER

If asbestos containing materials were impacted and/or damaged during a fire loss, then the soft and/or porous building materials and personal contents should be removed and disposed of as Asbestos Containing Building Materials (ACBM). The hard and/or nonporous building materials and personal contents can be cleaned and decontaminated on site. The locations surrounding the damaged areas should be considered contaminated with asbestos. BEM cannot assume these other areas were not impacted with asbestos. BEM recommends to either assume the building materials and/or personal contents within these surrounding locations are contaminated with asbestos; or TEM samples can be collected within these surrounding locations to determine if the asbestos contamination migrated to these surrounding locations adjacent to the known contamination.

VIII. CERTIFICATION

Inspection services relative to the Subject Site were provided by BEM's Mr. Brett L. Bovée & Mr. Anthony J. Miller, Certified Asbestos Consultants, No. 95-1643, expiration on 03/08/2025 & Number 19-6474, expiration on 04/17/2025.

BEM looks forward to assisting you in the near future. If you have any questions regarding this report or other BEM services, please do not hesitate to call us at (209) 847-3800 or (559) 264-3800.

Regards,

Brett L. Bovée

Brett L. Bovée, CAC, CMC, CDPH Certified Asbestos Consultant No. 95-1643



Anthony J. Miller

Anthony J. Miller, CAC, CDPH Certified Asbestos Consultant No. 19-6474



ATTACHMENT A

BEM
SAMPLE FIELD SHEET



CHAIN OF CUSTODY

1643 3RD STREET ESCALON, CA 95320

833-643-3800 • BEM@BOVEEINC.COM

BEM PROJECT#	24-67910	TURN-AROUND TIME					
SAMPLE DATE:	9-12-24	● SAME DAY ○ 24HOURS					
SURVEY TYPE:	Reno	0					

Project Na	ject Name: Fire Shation 31; Comm					Point Count Trace Results					
Address:	1 <u>-</u>	Marchall St. Turlocu	(A 95380			() Y	ES-400	O YE	S-1000) () N	Ю
Type of Los	l	· ·									1
Areas Inspe		Show Ruom, Ext.						ಭ			
Sample# 67910	Sample Description		Surface	T. Time LPM	Vol./Qua.	PLM XRF	PCM	Mold Direct	E-COLI	TEM	AAS
- 01	Mat. Desc.: CT Grown Mat. Loc.: To. CT	Base	W C FL		(• 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
	Mat. Desc.: CT Cement	\ _l	W C FL		(• 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
	Mat. Desc.: 5T		W C FL			• 0	0	0	0	0 (0 0
- 63	Mat. Loc.: 7/0 Mat. Desc.: \$7		W C FL ●○○								
- 04	Mat. Loc.:		W C FL			• 0	0	0	O	0 0) (
- 05	Mat. Loc.:		W C FL		(• 0	0	0	0	0 0) (
-	Mat. Desc. SR/7C Mat. Loc.:		•00		(• 0	0	0	0	0 0) (
- 67	Mat. Loc.:		W C FL		(• 0	0	0	0	0 0) 0
- 08	Mat. Desc.: Stucco		W C FL			• 0	0	0	0	0 0) (
- 09	Mat. Desc.: VBP Mat. Loc.: Fyt Wall	•	W C FL		(• 0	0	0	0	0 0) 0
	Mat. Desc.:	(4V1F185	W C FL		(00	0	0	0	0 0) O
	Mat. Loc.: Mat. Desc.:		W C FL			00	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
	Mat. Loc.: Mat. Desc.:		W C FL			0 0	0	0	\circ	0 0	2 0
	Mat. Loc.: Mat. Desc.:		W C FL								
	Mat. Loc.: Mat. Desc.:		W C FL		(00	0	0	0	0 0) (
	Mat. Loc.:		000		(00	0	0	0	0 0) (
	Mat. Loc.:		W C FL		(00	0	0	0	0 () (
	Mat. Loc.:		W C FL		(0 0	0	0	0	0 0) 0
	Mat. Desc.:		W C FL			0 0	0	0	0	0 () O
Relinquishe	nd by: J. Wanharn	Received by: SC	Relinquished by:	<u> </u>	Received b	oy:					
×xxn	^ /	X Sage Cortes	Х		Х						
Time/Date	9-12-24	Time/Date: 09/13/24 08:30 AM			Time/Dat	e:					
BEM USE	E ONLY: Accept Sa	mples $ abla$ Yes In. $ abla$ C da	ate 09/13	Vers	sion: FCOC.	03.1	5.22	.1/1	.QN	1	

ATTACHMENT B

LABORATORY
ANALYTICAL REPORT



Report Prepared For:

Bovee Environmental Management 1643 3rd Street Escalon, CA 95320

Client Project: 24-67910 Report ID: AE241859

Dear Customer:

Enclosed are asbestos analysis results for PLM Bulk samples received at our laboratory on **September 13, 2024**. The samples were analyzed for asbestos using polarizing light microscopy (PLM) under EPA 600/R-93/116 and EPA – Appendix E to Subpart E of 40 CFR Part 763 Methods.

Sample results containing >1% asbestos are considered asbestos-containing materials (ACMs) per EPA regulatory requirements. The detection limit for the EPA 600 Method is <1% asbestos by weight as determined by visual estimation.

TOTAL SAMPLES ANALYZED: 9

TOTAL LAYERS ANALYZED: 14

LAYERS >1% ASBESTOS: 0

Kind Regards,

Danielle Carrier

Laboratory Director





ASBESTOS REPORT SUMMARY

By: POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY

Client Project: 24-67910 Report ID: AE241859

Client: Bovee Environmental Management

1643 3rd Street Escalon, CA 95320

Methodology: EPA 600/R-93/116 and EPA – Appendix E to Subpart E of 40 CFR Part 763

Client ID	Layer	Lab ID	Color	Sample Description	% Asbestos
67910-01	1	AE2417739	Gray	Ceramic Tile Grout	None Detected
67910-02	1	AE2417740	Cream	Ceramic Tile Cement	None Detected
67910-03	1	AE2417741	Gray; Off White	Surface Texture	None Detected
67910-04	1	AE2417742	Gray; White	Surface Texture	None Detected
67910-05	1	AE2417743	Gray; White	Surface Texture	None Detected
67910-06	1	AE2417744	White	Sheetrock	None Detected
	2		White	Joint Compound	None Detected
	3		White	Sheetrock, Joint Compound Composite	None Detected
67910-07	1	AE2417745	White	Sheetrock	None Detected
	2		White	Joint Compound	None Detected
	3		White	Sheetrock, Joint Compound Composite	None Detected
67910-08	1	AE2417746	Cream	Stucco Skim Coat	None Detected
	2		Gray	Stucco Base Coat	None Detected
67910-09	1	AE2417747	Brown	Vapor Barrier Paper	None Detected



AE241859

Report ID:



By: POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY

Client: **Bovee Environmental Management**

Received: 09/13/2024 1643 3rd Street Analyzed: 09/13/2024 Escalon, CA 95320 Reported: 09/13/2024

Client Project: 24-67910

Methodology: EPA 600/R-93/116 and EPA – Appendix E to Subpart E of 40 CFR Part 763

Client ID	Lab	Lab	NON-ASBEST	OS COMP			ASBESTOS
Sample ID	Description	Attributes	Fibrous		Non-Fibrous		%
67910-01 AE2417739	Ceramic Tile Grout	Gray Homogeneous Fibrous Tightly Bound	Cellulose Fiber	3%	Silicates Binder/Filler	40% 57%	None Detected
67910-02 AE2417740	Ceramic Tile Cement	Cream Homogeneous Non-Fibrous Bound			Silicates Calcium Carbonate Binder/Filler	10% 25% 65%	None Detected
67910-03 AE2417741	Surface Texture	Gray; Off White Heterogeneous Non-Fibrous Bound			Paint Silicates Calcium Carbonate	15% 15% 70%	None Detected
67910-04 AE2417742	Surface Texture	Gray; White Heterogeneous Non-Fibrous Bound			Paint Silicates Calcium Carbonate	15% 15% 70%	None Detected
67910-05 AE2417743	Surface Texture	Gray; White Heterogeneous Non-Fibrous Bound			Paint Silicates Calcium Carbonate	15% 15% 70%	None Detected
67910-06 AE2417744	LAYER 1 Sheetrock	White Heterogeneous Fibrous Bound	Cellulose Fiber Fiberglass	15% <1%	Gypsum	85%	None Detected
	LAYER 2 Joint Compound	White Homogeneous Non-Fibrous Bound			Silicates Calcium Carbonate	20% 80%	None Detected
	LAYER 3 Sheetrock, Joint Compound Composite	White Heterogeneous Fibrous Bound	Cellulose Fiber	20%	Calcium Carbonate Gypsum	10% 70%	None Detected



AE241859

Report ID:



By: POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY

Client: **Bovee Environmental Management**

Received: 09/13/2024 1643 3rd Street Analyzed: 09/13/2024 Escalon, CA 95320 Reported: 09/13/2024

Client Project: 24-67910

Methodology: EPA 600/R-93/116 and EPA – Appendix E to Subpart E of 40 CFR Part 763

Client ID	Lab	Lab	NON-ASBEST	OS COMP	ONENTS		ASBESTOS
Sample ID	Description	Attributes	Fibrous		Non-Fibrous		%
67910-07 AE2417745	LAYER 1 Sheetrock	White Heterogeneous Fibrous Bound	Cellulose Fiber Fiberglass	15% <1%	Gypsum	85%	None Detected
	LAYER 2 Joint Compound	White Homogeneous Non-Fibrous Bound			Silicates Calcium Carbonate	20% 80%	None Detected
	LAYER 3 Sheetrock, Joint Compound Composite	White Heterogeneous Fibrous Bound	Cellulose Fiber	20%	Calcium Carbonate Gypsum	10% 70%	None Detected
67910-08 AE2417746	LAYER 1 Stucco Skim Coat	Cream Heterogeneous Fibrous Bound	Cellulose Fiber	3%	Paint Silicates Binder/Filler	20% 40% 37%	None Detected
	LAYER 2 Stucco Base Coat	Gray Homogeneous Non-Fibrous Tightly Bound			Silicates Binder/Filler Mica	40% 60% <1	None Detected
67910-09 AE2417747	Vapor Barrier Paper	Brown Homogeneous Fibrous Loosely Bound	Cellulose Fiber	65%	Tar	35%	None Detected



ASBESTOS BULK ANALYSIS

By: POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY

Report ID:

AE241859

Bovee Environmental Management 1643 3rd Street

Received: Analyzed: 09/13/2024 09/13/2024

Escalon, CA 95320

Reported:

09/13/2024

Client Project: 24-67910

Non-Trem = Non-Asbestiform Tremolite

METHOD:

LEGEND:

Methodology:

Client:

EPA 600/R-93/116 and EPA – Appendix E to Subpart E of 40 CFR Part 763

EPA 600/R-93/116 and EPA – Appendix E to Subpart E of 40 CFR Part 763

REPORTING LIMIT:

<1% by Visual Estimation

Non-Anth = Non-Asbestiform Anthophyllite

REPORTING LIMIT FOR POINT COUNTS: 0.25% by 400 Points or 0.1% by 1,000 Points

REGULATORY LIMIT:

>1% by Weight

Due to the limitations of the EPA 600 method, nonfriable organically bound materials (NOBs) such as vinyl floor tiles can be difficult to analyze via polarized light microscopy (PLM). EPA recommends that all NOBs analyzed by PLM, and found not to contain asbestos, be further analyzed by Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM). Please note that PLM analysis of dust and soil samples for asbestos is not covered under any of Central Valley Laboratories' accreditations. Estimated measurement of uncertainty is available on request.

This report relates only to the samples tested or analyzed and may not be reproduced, except in full, without written approval by Central Valley Laboratories (CVL). CVL makes no warranty representation regarding the accuracy of customer submitted information in preparing and presenting analytical results. Interpretation of the analytical results is the sole responsibility of the customer. Samples were received in acceptable condition unless otherwise noted. This report may not be used by the customer to claim product endorsement by NVLAP, AIHA, ELAP, NIST or any agency of the U.S. Government.

CVL is accredited with the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) under Certificate Number 3013.

CVL is accredited for Asbestos Analysis of Bulk Building Materials by PLM by the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program (NVLAP Lab Code 600260-0).

Report Authorized By

Danielle Carrier, Laboratory Director

09/13/2024

Sage Cortes

Date

Co-Analyzed By

Ashlie Fuller

NVLAP Lab Code 600260

ATTACHMENT C

SITE DRAWING

